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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu light,
medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, automobile parts and
accessories. All of the production facilities of the Group are located in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and substantially all the sales
of the Group are also made in the PRC. The Group had export sales to
overseas countries during the year, which accounted for approximately
1.37% of the Group's turnover for the year.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group had 2,934 employees as at 31 December 2021.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
(the”Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group") for the year
ended 31 December 2021 for your review.

2021 RESULTS

As of 31 December 2021, the Company sold 43,876 vehicles,
representing a decrease of 4.34% over 45,869 vehicles sold last year.
Revenue was RMB4,828 million, representing a decrease of 5.12% over
RMB5,089 million as recorded last year. Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year was RMB331 million, representing an increase of
7.97% over RMB306 million as recorded last year.

REVIEW OF RESULTS

In 2021, China's COVID-19 prevention and control encountered double
risk challenges of “preventing the coronavirus from spreading within
the city/region or beyond”. The price of bulk materials rose sharply, and
the sales volume and efficiency of commercial trucks decreased. The
shortage of wafers, power rationing and the introduction of many new
policies, regulations and industry standards had certain impacts on the
industry. Over the past year, the Company has overcome the impact of
the pandemic and the downward difficulties of the industry, practised
the new development concept, and promoted innovation-driven and
enterprise reform, resulting in stable production and operation.

1. New achievements have been made in product innovation
and technological innovation. The rapid development was
corresponding to the new blue-brand new policy and self-owned
brand light trucks; Isuzu and self-owned brand pick-up models
were innovated; new energy and smart connected vehicles
were fully promoted; hydrogen-powered vehicle research and
development and industrial ecology cultivation have achieved
initial results; breakthroughs have been made in the research
and development of key assemblies and parts; the reform of
R&D innovation organizations and mechanism has continued to
deepen.

2. Withstood the downward pressure on the commercial vehicle
industry and stabilized the marketing situation. Established
rules and regulations, introduced a number of systems,
standardized and strengthened the construction of the marketing
network; optimized the tripartite financing plan, and introduced
customer-oriented financing schemes to reduce the cost of car
purchase; strengthened product and brand publicity, and deeply
cultivated the main commercial vehicle market; accurate efforts
have been made in the oil, electricity and hydrogen vehicle market
to attract customers; we also continued to strengthen overseas
marketing and after-sales capacity-building, seized the overseas
mid-market, continuously expanded the overseas customer base,
and the export of complete vehicles increased significantly.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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3. The basic management of quality, cost and delivery time
showed a new look. Quality management has been continuously
strengthened; the production system has continued to implement
automation and intelligent transformation, and new progress has
been made in on-site management; the procurement system
has built a supply management information system, and the
supply chain support capability has continued to improve; capital
management has achieved remarkable results.

4. Deepened reform and stimulated the creativity of all staff.
Through the normalization of the declaration and review of
national titles, we strengthened the training of staff and the
support of talents; increased the incentives for innovation,
continued to reward new product development, process and
management innovation, and stimulated innovation vitality.

5. Fully implemented the main responsibility of safety and
environmental protection. We revised and improved the
rules and regulations on safety and environmental protection,
strictly implemented the dual prevention and control mechanism
of “classified management and control of safety risks and
investigation and management of hidden dangers of accidents”,
and organized safety and environmental protection education
and training for several times throughout the year to improve the
safety and environmental protection awareness of employees, so
as to achieve safe and stable production, environmental protection
and standard emissions.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

The current macro-economy is facing triple pressures of demand
contraction, supply shock and weakening expectations. The automobile
industry will speed up the pace of the dual carbon goals, and accelerate
its progress towards “electrification, networking, intelligence, and
sharing”. The emission and fuel consumption regulations will be more
stringent and strictly supervised. The R&D and application of energy
conservation and efficiency enhancement, low-carbon decarbonization
and smart networking technology will change with each passing day,
and the industrial ecology will accelerate the change. According to
the prediction of China Automobile Association, the policy dividend
supporting the growth of commercial vehicle market will weaken in 2022,
the market will enter a period of adjustment, and the sales volume will
continue to decline. The key tasks of the Company in 2022 are as follows:

1. To focus on key development tasks and strengthen
innovation drive. The Company will be efficient and ahead
of schedule to complete the study and development of new
regulations on pick-up trucks and heavy trucks; combine research
and sales, accurately correspond to the market, and create key
products; make breakthroughs on forward-looking technologies
and cultivate new industries to realize sustainable development;
develop independent brands and ensure industrial safety.



2. REEWRED - BLEHABRRKHE
BIMmxxBhER  #Eht+&amig
K B e & iH K B 1R IR T PR {848
RIgR  ARSMEE REX
YaF 1+ 92 70 B = fn e [ 7 18 5 e 52
&R ERRIGRE IR -

3. RAMHHERMSN BEERE
B BETE - BEREREASS -
B RMTR - REEEEY - MR
ERIEE - ERITFE - ERERS
RATBHF S -

4. FEMILEE BT THRHERE
B BBKFRADTREENIM
EIDET - ABEIIEHAEE MR
TERGER RERY BUEH
REEEERER RAEEBEEFR
MEEN : RIB RO ENR FIE AR
X RAXEREMBENIBHRE
N RSEREKY  BESRRS
HEBEN[MIEN]  BREUENE
ale

M —F  ARARKE-HRIESBERE
2 SEERE - BAMEZOBRFE S BEM
BHOXRERERMES UL - BESHMERIE
o BeRIFAlE - BEIES - BoRER 1B
EEEAERE  BRAKESLAEERE |

- —#F#=A—-+#AH

EERAE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

2. To improve marketing capabilities. The Company will
strengthen the construction of “two teams” of marketing
personnel and resellers and strengthen the construction of “two
networks” of marketing and after-sales service of Isuzu brand
and self-owned brands to increase the popularity and meeting
rate, focus on the construction of “two brands” of Isuzu and
self-owned brands and strengthen after-sales service capacity
building.

3. To enhance the competitiveness of the hydrogen power
industry. The Company will focus on key regions and key
markets, to continue to expand application scenarios and establish
a brand image. We will seize industrial high points, speed up
industrial cultivation, and to enhance market competitiveness
through technological upgrade and repeated product calculations.

4. To continuously strengthen the basic management of quality,
cost and delivery time. Through the horizontal deployment of
Isuzu’s advanced IM management activities, personnel training,
etc., the Company will continue to strengthen production
system management, improve quality and efficiency; establish a
whole-process quality management system, and improve quality
management methods and capabilities; continue to focus on
guarantees and cost-control for the procurement system, improve
the collaborative ability to support development and quality;
improve the level of informatization, and enhance the “processing
capability” of each system to realize the “value-added” of data.

In the new year, the Company will further strengthen various basic
management, continue to consolidate and enhance the core competitiveness
of the enterprise, adhere to and carry forward the fine style and excellent
culture of the enterprise, adhere to the new development concept,
strengthen innovation and creation, and strive for practical results. We
will stabilize the production and operation of the enterprise and realize
sustainable and high-quality development!

25 March 2022
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DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Yuguang, aged 52, has been an executive director, the
Chairman, a member of the remuneration committee and the chairman
and a member of the nomination committee of the Company since 22
December 2016. He graduated from Beijing Agricultural Engineering
University (bR BE T AE) in 1992, specialized in Construction
and Environmental Engineering (28R T#2) with a Bachelor's
degree in engineering. Mr. LUO also completed and graduated from
an undergraduate program in Chongqging Normal University (A&
AE) in 2008, majoring in Accounting. He joined the Company after
obtaining his Bachelor’'s degree and has a consecutive period of more
than 20 years of experience in the car industry. At the early stage, Mr.
LUO underwent an internship at the Assemble Workshop (#8225 f),
Repair Workshop (#{£E ), Infrastructure Department (FE#ZZB) and
Procurement Department (E£#%EB) of the Company. Later he was the
Deputy Head of the Planning and Construction Department (7 &2 5% 50
2l&6 ), Deputy Head of Secondary Pressing Vehicles Workshop (=7
BB RIg|E1T), Deputy Head of the Finance Department (817530828 K)
and Deputy Head of the Integrated Planning Department (424 5+ E1 20 &
). In 2009, he joined the management team of the Company and was
the Deputy Chief Economist and the Head of Procurement Department
(BI4AL RN SR ERAB S50 £K), and the Deputy General Manager of Qingling
Motors (Group) Company Limited (“Qingling Group”), the substantial
Shareholder of the Company, responsible for the production, logistics,
domestic support and import, etc.. He took up the post of the Director
and the General Manager of Qingling Group in September 2016. Mr.
LUO studied abroad for several times, including the Advanced Course in
Corporate Governance organized by the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Studies on Special Topics such as production, quality,
development and sales organized by Japan Isuzu. Mr. LUO has been the
Chairman of the Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co., Ltd. from April
2015 to 30 November 2016.

YASUTA Tatsuya, aged 58, has been an executive director, the vice
chairman and the general manager of the Company since 30 July 2021.
He graduated from the Faculty of Foreign Language, Tokyo University
of Foreign Studies. Mr. YASUTA joined Isuzu Motors Limited (“Isuzu”)
in April 1986, and has held various positions such as a middle manager,
team leader and director in various departments. He was assigned
to work for Isuzu Sub-Saharan Africa and GMICA Colombia Ltd. from
March 2015 to November 2018. Mr. YASUTA served as the assistant to
the head of Business Department of Isuzu, the assistant to the head of
First Section of Business Department and the assistant to the head of
the Industry SolutionePT Business Department from December 2018 to
March 2020. He was currently an S expert in the head office of China
Business Department from April 2021 to May 2021.
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MASUDA Yoichi, aged 64, has been an executive director of the
Company since 30 July 2021. He graduated from Meiji University
majoring in political economy. Mr. MASUDA joined Isuzu in April 1981,
and has held various positions such as Division Director and team leader
in various departments. He worked in various departments including Isuzu
(China) Holding Co., Ltd. (13 (FE)HKREF/R AR, Isuzu (Shanghai)
Technology & Trade Industrial Co., Ltd. (A +#(E8)HRZEEBEERA
7)), Isuzu (Thailand) Motors International Operations Company (f+%%
(=R B B EFRES A7) and Isuzu Headquarters from April 1999 to
May 2013. Mr. MASUDA served as general manager of Isuzu (Thailand)
Motors International Operations Company, general manager of Isuzu
(Thailand) International Operations Company (F 185 (ZeBl) R EE A
7)), executive officer, managing executive officer, acting head and head
of Business Department of Isuzu from October 2014 to April 2020. Mr.
MASUDA is currently the head of the Second Region Head Office of
Business Department, the director and managing executive officer of
China Head Office.

YAGI Naoto, aged 58, has been an executive director of the Company
since 30 July 2021. He graduated from the Faculty of Science and
Technology of Nihon University. Mr. YAGI joined Isuzu in April 1987, and
worked in various departments. From July 1997 to April 2015, he worked
at IC Engineer Corporation, ISPOL Company, Isuzu Engine Manufacturing
Hokkaido Corporation (1 1#2 8 B 80E I 8B i (5 A 7)), PT Technology
Department, and held several positions such as mlddle manager and
team leader. From April 2016, he served as director of PT Technology
Department and the First Department of PT Manufacturing, and S expert
of the Fifth Department of Overseas Business Department, and worked
at Isuzu Indonesia Engine Plant. Mr. YAGI is currently the executive
officer of PT Public Works Department and PT Quality Management
Department.

Mr. LI Juxing, aged 56, has been an executive director of the Company
since 28 May 2015. He graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology,
majoring in casting. He holds a bachelor degree of engineering and is a
senior engineer. Mr. LI successively served as a technician of a foundry
of Chongging Automobile Manufacturing Plant (& 5B £LE 42/, a
head of the biotechnology department, a head of the quality department,
a deputy chief engineer and a deputy general manager of Chongging
Qingling Casting Company Limited (EEER#EBEBR A F]) since July
1990. He became a deputy chief engineer of Qingling Group since 2005
and concurrently served as the general managers of Chongging Qingling
Aluminium Casting Co. Ltd. (EEE$#ERAR 2 F]) and Chongging
Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. (EEE%BEARRAR]). Since 2010, he has
been working as a deputy general manager of Qingling Group and he
also serves as the chairman of Chongging Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. and
vice chairman of Isuzu (China) Engine Co., Ltd.. During the period from
26 September 2016 to 22 December 2016, Mr. LI served as the acting
Chairman of the Company.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Mr. XU Song, aged 54, has been an executive director of the Company
since 15 June 2016. He is a senior engineer. Mr. XU joined the Chinese
Communist Party in June 1988. He graduated from the Faculty of
Engineering Machinery of Jilin University of Technology in July 1989,
majoring in crane transport and engineering machinery. Mr. XU was
awarded a bachelor degree in Engineering and a master degree in
Business Administration. He worked in the equipment department of
Chongging Automobile Manufacturing Plant as an internship in 1989 and
successively served as an assistant engineer and the deputy head of
manufacturing factory. From 1995 to 2004, he worked at the Company
and successively served as the deputy head, the head of manufacturing
factory and the head of the product development department. Since
2004, Mr. XU served as an assistant to general manager of Qingling
Group and the Company, and successively served as the head of the
business planning department of Qingling Group and the Company and
the director of chief engineer office of the Company. Since 2005, he
served as an assistant to general manager of Qingling Group and the
vice general manager of the Company, and also served as the head of
the business planning department of Qingling Group and the Company.
He also served as the head of the procurement department of Qingling
Group in November 2005. From 2009 to 2012, he successively served
as the deputy general manager and a member of the Party Committee
of Qingling Group, the general manager, the secretary and a member of
the Party Committee of Chongging Qingling Casting Company Limited.
From 2012 till now, Mr. XU served as the deputy general manager and
a member of the Party Committee of Qingling Group. Mr. XU ceased to
serve as the deputy general manager of the Company since 25 February
2020.

Mr. LI Xiaodong, aged 55, has been an executive director of the
Company since 30 May 2019. He is a member of the Communist Party
of China and holds the university graduate. He joined the Company
in September 1986. From September 1986 to October 2017, he was
successively a teacher at the Technical School, Youth League officer,
deputy secretary of Youth League, director of the engine manufacturing
department and deputy head of the coating workshop of Chongging
Automobile Manufacturing Plant (during his tenure, he graduated from
Chongaging Radio & TV University (majoring in law)); a deputy head of
the coating workshop, a deputy director of coating and manufacturing
department, deputy head and head of No. 2 welding workshop, director
of car body welding and manufacturing department of the Company;
vice general manager and general manager of Chongging Qingling
Forging Co. Ltd; assistant to general manager of Qingling Group; general
manager of Chongging Qingling Automobile Manufacture and Assembly
Co. Ltd.; person-in-charge of Northeast China and North China Sales
Region and chairman of Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd.. Mr. LI currently served as a vice general manager and
member of the party committee of Qingling Group (during his tenure, he
obtained a bachelor’s degree in mechanical design and manufacturing
and automation from Chongging University and a bachelor’'s degree
in business administration from China Central Radio & TV University),
chairman and secretary of the Party Committee of Chongging Qingling
Casting Company Limited. Mr. LI ceased to serve as the deputy general
manager of the Company since 25 February 2020.
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Mr. LONG Tao, aged 70, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 28 April 1994. He is also a member of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. LONG graduated from Research
Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance, majoring in accounting.
Mr. LONG holds a master’'s degree in Economics. He had served at
Accountancy Division of Central University of Finance and Economics,
and New York office of KPMG Peat Marwick. Mr. LONG had acted
as a member of Securities Issue and Approval Committee of China
Securities Regulatory Commission and member of Chinese technology
expert panel for China-Hong Kong Securities Team. Mr. LONG also
served as the independent director of Luoyang Glass Company Limited,
Beijing Hua'er Company Limited (Jt 7/t —f%1n HBR A 7)), Beijing Capital
International Airport Co., Ltd., Baotou Iron and Steel Co. Ltd., China Asset
Management Co., Ltd., Beijing Bashi Company Limited, Jiangxi Copper
Company Limited, Beijing North Star Company Limited, Wangfujing
Department Store Co., Ltd. (EIFHBERERMDBRAF) and the
chairman of Beijing Haiwen Investment Consulting Co., Ltd. (1t 58/
A FHABRRAR). Mr. LONG has extensive knowledge and experience
in corporate finance, accounting, audit, assets appraisal, restructuring
of enterprise and listing. Mr. LONG currently serves as the chairman
of Beijing Haiwen Entrepreneurship New Technology Investment
Management Co., Ltd. At B AIZEFH MK EEREGRAF]), an
independent director of Beijing Whoswho Culture and Media Co., Ltd.,
UBS SDIC Fund Management Co., Ltd., Crown International Corporation
Limited (a local company in Hong Kong) and Aimer Co., Ltd. (BR&HE
RAA]).

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, aged 71, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 28 April 1994. He is also the chairman and
a member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. SONG is the
general manager of Chongqging Ping Zheng Law Office, a member of the
China Economic Law Association and the China Lawyers Association. Mr.
SONG has been a lawyer and notary for 30 years. Mr. SONG graduated
from South West Institute of Political Science and Law and also studied
international law in the China University of Political Science and Law
and foreign economic law at Shenzhen University. He was formerly vice
chairman of Chongging Notary Office and vice chairman of Chongging
Foreign Law Office.
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Mr. LIU Tianni, aged 58, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 31 May 2011. He is also a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. LIU is also the executive director, the chairman
and the chief executive officer of Wonderful Sky Financial Group
Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 1260), the chairman of The Listed Companies
Council of Chinese Enterprises Association (Hong Kong) (B8 {1 0
AalZ B ), a Hong Kong member of Chongaing Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (EE MBI E
BZ B), executive vice chairman of the Hong Kong Island Federation (&
B EHA ), the honorary chairman of Shandong Hong Kong Overseas
Investment and Financing Association (B8 ™% REIER A ), and vice
chairman of China Mergers and Acquisition Association (Kong Kong) (&
R EIHTEEAE). Mr. LIU graduated from Beijing Normal University with
a master degree in science.

Mr. LIU Erh Fei, aged 63, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and a member of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company
since 28 May 2015. He graduated from Harvard Business School with a
master degree in Business Administration. He graduated from Brandeis
University with a bachelor degree in Economics and International
Relations in 1984 and from Beijing Foreign Studies University, majoring in
English, in 1981. Mr. LIU has served as the chairman of China region and
the general manager of China region of Bank of America Merrill Lynch
Group, and served as senior management in Goldman Sachs Group
Company, Morgan Stanley, Salomon Smith Barney International and
Calyon Credit Agricole of France. He is currently a founding partner and
CEO of Asian Investment Capital (253% & 7K), a director of Cindat Capital
Management Limited, an independent director of CMB Wing Lung Bank
Limited and an independent non-executive director of Jiangxi Copper
Company Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, stock code: 358).
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. MIN Qing, aged 54, has been the supervisor representing the
Shareholders since 15 June 2006. Ms. MIN ceased to be the Chairman of
the Supervisory Committee on 28 May 2015. Ms. MIN is a director, the
deputy secretary of the Party Committee and the Chairman of the Trade
Union of Qingling Group, and has many years of experience in corporate
management. Ms. MIN graduated from Chongging Communication
College in Mechanical Engineering in 1988 and had undergraduate
education. She also studied corporate management in Japan.

PU Qing, aged 49, has been a supervisor representing the staffs and
workers of the Company since 15 December 2021. She graduated
from Chongging University with a bachelor’'s degree in thermal power
engineering and as a master in business administration. Ms. PU joined
the Company in 1996 and worked in the Equipment Department, Kinetic
Energy Department and Sales Department of the Group. From March
2003 to October 2021, Ms. PU served as the person in charge of the
Personnel Department of Qingling Group, a substantial Shareholder
of the Company, and the person in charge of the Secondary Pressing
Vehicles Workshop (— &/ EfH) of the Company; the assistant to general
manager and deputy secretary of the Party branch of EEEXIEAER
[R727]; the deputy head of the Planning Department of Qingling Group
and the Company, the deputy head of the Finance Department and the
head of the Finance Department of the Company and the secretary of
Party Branch for General Management. Ms. PU is currently the head of
the Audit Department and the director of Supervisors Office of Qingling
Group.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Dear Shareholders:

Since the establishment of the Supervisory Committee, each member
has been performing his duty in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association with a view of protecting the interests of Shareholders
and the Company. We have attended the board meetings and have
given our opinions regarding the business development, market
expansion, technological reform, basic management and team building
of the Company. We have also monitored the guiding ideology of the
management and considered whether the decisions made by the
management were in compliance with state laws and whether they
were appropriate for the development of the Company and were in the
interests of Shareholders.

According to its power, the Supervisory Committee has reviewed
evidence of the Company’s accounts, books, reports and other
accounting information in a timely manner. In our opinion, the financial
statements have been properly prepared while the accounting principles
and the method of financial management adopted are in compliance with
relevant rules and regulations and no issues were identified.

The Supervisory Committee have carefully examined the financial
statements, the Directors’ Report and the proposal for appropriation of
profit to be presented before the annual general meeting by the Board of
Directors. In our opinion, the chairman of the Board, directors, managers
and senior management have not engaged in any malpractices which
would be prejudicial to the interests of Shareholders and employees of
the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance as well as
the economic results of the Company, and we are confident about the
future development of the Company.

Supervisor
MIN Qing
Chongging, the PRC, 25 March 2022
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu light,
medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks as well as automobile
parts and accessories. The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures of the Company are set out in notes 41, 22 and 23
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair view
of the business and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2021 and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business are set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Directors’ Report”, “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” sections of this annual report. In addition, a discussion of
the Company's environmental policies and performance, the Company’s
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Company and the relationship between the Company and
significant stakeholders are set out in “Directors’ Report” and “Corporate
Governance Report” sections of this annual report. The business review
in the above sections comprise part of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 70. The directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.11 per share to the Shareholders
whose names appear in the register of members of the Company on 16
June 2022, amounting to approximately RMB273,050,000 in total.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to environmental protection, energy-saving and
emission reduction, and the integrated use of resources. Adhering to the
principles of making production and operation harmony to the ecological
environment, the Group has adopted the concept of environmental
protection, energy-saving and emission reduction and the integrated use
of resources in its production and operating activities through reducing
emission, protecting the environment and saving of resources while
putting into practice the scientific concepts of environmental protection
and integrated use of resources.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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The Group keeps placing strong emphasis on environmental protection
issues and coordinates the relationship between production development
and environmental protection, with the aim to develop pollution-free
production modes. The successive operation of the newly-installed
environmental protection facilities, the improvement of working
environment and the integrated measures adopted to prevent and
mitigate pollution have made the pollutants produced not exceeding
the standards set by local environmental authorities. The Group strives
to protect and improve the environment, enhance the environmental
awareness of our staff, ensure the well-being of our staff and builds a
clean and favorable production and working environment. With various
measures such as resources recycling and reusing and energy-saving
and emission reduction putting in place in the production process, the
Group endeavors to produce energy-saving and environmentally-friendly
products while keeping in mind the well-being of the production workers.
The implementation of the above measures fully demonstrates the
Group’s sustainable development strategies and its determination on
environmental protection.

COMPLIANCE OF RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

With regard to the protection of intellectual properties — The Group has
complied with the terms stipulated under the Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China and its Regulation for the Implementation of
the Trademark Law and the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China
and Rules for the Implementation of the Patent Law and the specific
requirements of the city to carry out the work in relation to the design
and file registration of trademarks and patents and has actively taken
measures to protect the trademarks and patents of other interested
stakeholders.

With regard to the product quality and consumer rights — The Group
has strictly complied with the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Product Quality and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests in the manufacturing and
selling procedures of automobile products and automobile parts. With
respect to product quality, the Group strengthens source management
and formulates stringent standard in evaluating parts suppliers to ensure
the quality of parts products and prevent substandard goods being
passed off as high-quality ones while purchasing automobile products
and parts. During the production process, standardized management
is strictly implemented with an emphasis on the management of
craftsmanship quality, and defective and substandard parts are prohibited
to be assembled at the production line in order to ensure the satisfactory
rate at the production line. Before the products are transferred into the
warehouses, product quality inspection system was strictly put in place
to forbid defective products being launched. In terms of protection of
consumers’ rights, we have complied with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights, and product
manuals with full details are provided to consumers while advertisements
are tailored to truly reflect the authentic characteristics of products.
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With regard to the interests of the employees — The Group strives
to comply with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Social Insurance
Law of the People’s Republic of China, so as to safeguard the legitimate
interests of workers. All full-time employees are entitled to work-related
injury insurance, unemployment insurance, medical insurance, pension
insurance, and maternity insurance and housing fund as required by the
state regulations. The Group has also arranged annual body check for
all of its staff, and this further protects the legitimate interests of the
employees. Moreover, the Group also actively organizes activities for its
employees with regard to the education of prevention of occupational
disease and other safety and health related issues.

With regard to tax payment — The Group complies with specific
regulations of the People’s Republic of China on various taxes, and
pays taxes according to the law for the purpose of ensuring that all
tax payment made by the Group is in compliance with the laws and
regulations.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

Risks relating to the decline in sales and profit as a result of
weakened market environment

As China’'s economy is turning into “new normal” amid the cross
impact of the “overlapping of the three phases”, the sales of domestic
commercial vehicles decline as a result of the overall decline in demand
for commercial vehicles. With the protracted economic downturn, the
competition in the domestic commercial vehicles market may further
exacerbate, causing impact to the Group's sales for commercial vehicles
and hence affecting the Group's profit.

Risks relating to the insufficient research and development and
the increase in costs in order to adapt to the tightened national
regulations on emission and consumer demand

Taken into the consideration of environmental protection, the national
regulations on emission tend to be tightened and the switching time
tends to be shortened while the consumer demand tends to be more
diversified and competitors tend to launch new products more frequently,
this has put forward higher requirement for the Group’s research and
development capability. However, there exists lead time from research
and development to commercial production of replacement products,
the Group's capability in research and development is crucial in
satisfying national and consumer requirements while outperforming the
competitors. Nevertheless, it may not be possible to timely launch new
products that can outperform competitors every time due to constraints
on capital, time, and ability. Since the Group’s costs on research and
development will be driven up by the launching of new products, such
research and development costs may have to transfer to the product
price to the extent not offset by the reasonable reduction of the Group's
internal costs, and this will inevitably weaken the Group’s product
competitiveness.

E$2/5H A1 B PR A R Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Risks relating to the fall of products’ popularity and reputation
arising from consumers’ comment

In recent years, the competition among domestic commercial vehicles
enterprises intensifies as the market environment deteriorates.
Competitors keep launching mid-to-high end commercial trucks into the
market, causing unfavorable impact to the Group’s dominant position in
the mid-to-high end commercial truck market.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately RMB150,999,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion of its
production facilities.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment and investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 18 and note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUID FUNDS
SITUATION

Financial Performance

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the Group was
RMB4,828,237,000 representing a decrease of 5.12% as compared to
last year mainly due to the decrease of sales volume.

Gross profit for the period was RMB554,344,000 representing a decrease
of 20.74% as compared to last year. Gross profit margin of the Group
for the period was 11.48% as compared with 13.74% last year. Profit
and total comprehensive income for the year was RMB330,886,000
representing an increase of 7.97% as compared to last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, other income and expenses
mainly included government grants, interest income, rental income and
miscellaneous service income and expense was RMB453,790,000,
representing an increase of 62.54% as compared to last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's expenses, including
distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses and research
expenses, increased by 5.15% as compared to last year, principally due
to the increase in research activities expenses for the year as compared
to last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the share of results of joint
ventures of the Group was RMB4,306,000, representing an increase of
77.42% as compared to last year, mainly due to the profit increase of &
BRARTRER)AEHEERBER AT (“Qingling Sales”), which is a joint
venture that was established in December 2007.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, basic earnings per share was
RMBO0.13. The Company did not issue any new shares and the basic
earnings per share was comparable with last year.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2021, the total assets and total liabilities of the Group
were RMB10,905,911,000 and RMB2,838,689,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s non-current assets amounted to
RMB4,988,506,000 which mainly included property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, investment properties, intangible assets, interests in
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and time deposits.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's current assets amounted to
RMB5,917,405,000 which mainly included inventories, trade, bills and
other receivables and prepayments, tax recoverable, time deposits, bank
balances and cash.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's current liabilities amounted to
RMB2,829,614,000 which mainly includes trade, bills and other payables,
lease liabilities, tax liabilities, contract liabilities and refund liabilities.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's non-current liability amounted to
RMB9,075,000 which mainly included deferred income — governments
grants and lease liabilities.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's net current assets was RMB3,087,791,000
(2020: RMB3,919,383,000), representing a decrease of 21.22% as
compared to last year, mainly due to the liquidity classification of time
deposits.

Liquidity and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2021, the time deposits, bank balances and cash
retained by the Group due within one year were RMB2,273,060,000 and
decreased by 30.75% as compared with the balances on 31 December
2020. The Group's working capital requirement was financed by its own
cash flow. Gearing ratio represented the percentage of total liabilities
over total equity as per consolidated statement of financial position. The
gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was 35.19% (as at 31
December 2020: 37.30%). Issued share capital as at 31 December 2021
maintained at the level of RMB2,482,268,000 as no share was issued
during this year.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material change in
the financing strategies of the Group and the Group did not incur any bank
borrowings nor any non-current liabilities. The Company would closely
monitor the financial and liquidity position of the Group and financial
market from time to time in order to formulate financing strategies
appropriate to the Group. The total equity attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2021 was RMB7,739,697,000. The net
assets value per share (representing total equity attributable to owners
of the Company divided by number of shares of the Company as at 31
December 2021) as at 31 December 2021 was RMB3.12.

Significant Investment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's interests in joint ventures were
RMB489,471,000 and interest in associates was RMB51,131,000
which mainly included the interest in B#&ZFAEAR AT (“Qingling
Shinenary”), a joint venture, of RMB42,115,000. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the joint ventures and associate of the Group were
under normal operation.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no significant
acquisition and disposal of the Group.

Segment Information

The revenue contributed by light-duty trucks and medium and heavy-duty
trucks were RMB2,662,521,000 and RMB1,063,858,000 respectively,
representing 77.18% of the total revenue and 97.39% of the total
segment profit. Light-duty trucks and medium and heavy-duty trucks are
currently the major products accounting for the highest contribution to
the Group.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, no asset of the Group was pledged for financial
facilities (for the year ended 31 December 2020: Nil).

Effects of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes

The major foreign currency transactions of the Group are relating to
purchasing automobile parts denominated in Japanese Yen. The Group

did not encounter any difficulty or suffer any significant impact in its
operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in the exchange rate.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or at any
time during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the amount
of profit available for distribution shall be deemed to be the lesser
of the amount of profit determined in accordance with the relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations applicable to companies
established in the PRC ("PRC GAAP"). The Company's profit available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2021 was the
retained profit of approximately RMB1,518,696,000 (2020: approximately
RMB1,478,406,000).

The profit of the Company for a financial year shall be applied in
accordance with the following order:

(i)  making up losses;
(i) allocation to statutory surplus reserve fund;

(i) if there are preference shares, payment of dividends in respect of
preference shares;

(iv)  allocation to discretionary surplus reserve fund; and
(v)  payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.
The detailed proportion of distribution in respect of items (ii) to (v) above
for any financial year shall be formulated by the Board in accordance
with the operational conditions of the Company and its development

requirements and shall be submitted to shareholders’ general meeting for
approval.

E$2/5H A1 B PR A R Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

HAYASHI Shuichi (resigned on 30 July 2021)
MAEGAKI Keiichiro (resigned on 30 July 2021)
ADACHI Katsumi (resigned on 30 July 2021)
YASUTA Tatsuya (appointed on 30 July 2021)
MASUDA Yoichi (appointed on 30 July 2021)
YAGI Naoto (appointed on 30 July 2021)

LI Juxing

XU Song

LI Xiaodong

Independent Non-executive Directors:

LONG Tao
SONG Xiaojiang
LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni

Supervisors:

MIN Qing
ZHANG Yongning (resigned on 15 December 2021)
PU Qing (appointed on 15 December 2021)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the executive directors and independent non-executive directors that
were re-elected and appointed renewed or entered into service contracts
or appointment letters with the Company for a term of three years on 2
June 2021 and 30 July 2021 respectively.

All the supervisors that were re-elected and appointed renewed or
entered into appointment letters with the Company for a term of three
years on 2 June 2021 and 15 December 2021 respectively.

None of the directors or supervisors has a service contract with the
Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors as regards to their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the independent non-executive
directors is independent to the Company.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, none of the directors or the supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors and supervisors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ MATERIAL
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to which the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which any directors or supervisors or their
connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the year or at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into by the Group or existed
during the year.

B2 /AHE D AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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EEREFNRIUERBT IR INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

RAFERN » ARRZEFREFWRNER During the year, none of the directors or supervisors of the Company had

NAIEBBFH R e T 2 EBP R aE any interest in any business which compete or may compete with the
= o business of the Company.

EE EFERESTHRAAM&R DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF
EEfFMAL EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATION AND THE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

B  EIEREaTBRAEMERESHIA The details of directors’, supervisors’ and chief executives’ remuneration
T2 HBERGREMBEREMT1S - RME and the highest paid individuals are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
N 2ERERARBRSTMALTHRES - financial statements. Within two years, all of the five highest paid

individuals of the Company are directors.

BERAB R EZRRE NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

RZE-—F+-A=1+—0 ' ARaREH As at 31 December 2021, there were 167 Shareholders recorded in the
it ERBERABAE167E  MARRESE -« B register of Shareholders of the Company and the Shareholders other
S mETHABUIN REREERIEE S & than a director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company, having

BRI ZE 33618 T AR AR R HETFKG an interest and short positions in 5% or more of the relevant class of
IR ECMARSE AR AREBERNS the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of
BT AE% A E R AR AT ¢ interests in the shares and short positions required to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:

RARRGOEFEER - Long positions in the shares of the Company:

EHERERN
BEXEESL {L#8RF
Percentage of B
FRriSAEnEHE the relevant Percentage of
BEREE B4R Number of &3 class of entire share
Name of Shareholders Class of Shares shares held Capacity share capital capital
ERREE&EE)ARAR NE I 1,243,616,4030% Em#EHB A 100.00% 50.10%
Qingling Motors (Group) Domestic shares  1,243,616,403 shares Beneficial owner 100.00% 50.10%

Company Limited

HEHRIREARRAR HA&% 496,453,654 EmEA A 40.08% 20.00%
Isuzu Motors Limited H shares 496,453,654 shares Beneficial owner 40.08% 20.00%

R EXFIIBEZEEN RARBE_ZS=—%F Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any other

T A=+ —AUEEEANERARATEE relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
FTRAS R B9 (R B Ab AR R R 2 SO B RO © Company as of 31 December 2021.

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee (composed of one executive director and
four independent non-executive directors) on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

DIVIDEND POLICY

A dividend policy is adopted by the Company which aims at setting out
the principles to be followed for paying dividends to the Shareholders of
the Company. When considering the dividend payment, the Board shall
take into account the factors including but not limited to the Company's
financial results, general business conditions and strategies, and statutory
and regulatory restrictions. There is no assurance that dividends will be
declared or distributed in any particular amount or in any form for each
year or in any year.

E$2/5H A1 B PR A R Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had continuing connected transactions with
(a) Qingling Group and its subsidiaries EEE 5§54 AR A alChongging
Qingling Casting Company Limited (“CQCC"), EEE K IBEER QA
Chongging Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. (“CQFC"), EEEXEBER AT
Chongging Qingling Axle Co. Ltd. ("CQAC"), EEE B ERFARAR]
Chongging Qingling NHK Seat Co. Ltd. (“CONHK"), EEERERARA
&lChongaing Qingling Plastic Co. Ltd. (“CQPC"), EEEXEIRAR A
Chongging Qingling Aluminium Casting Co. Ltd. (“CQACL"), EEE$%A
BE &I E PR A "]Chongging Qingling Automobile Chassis Parts Co.
Ltd. (“QAC"), EEE =7 PR 2 FChongging Qingling Machinery
Parts Co. Ltd. ("QM") and EEEREMTEAR AR (“Qingling Zhuan
Yong”, formerly known as EEE$ 98 FREIEHFR A FChongging
Qingling Automobile Manufacture and Assembly Co. Ltd.), EEESA
BRHREAR AR (“Qingling Parts”), EEEXEMBMEEGRA
A)(“Qingling Vehicle Parts Manufacturing”) and EEE$EH e TEHA
HABMBAF("Keyu Parts”), (b) Isuzu, (c) I+ (FE)BEBEAER QT
("Isuzu China Engine”), an entity established and jointly controlled by the
Company and Isuzu, formerly known as E#:h+8 (EE) B FHEAER A
A, (d) B R +8(EE) AEHE R AR A FQingling Isuzu (Chongging)
Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd. (“Qingling Isuzu Sales”), an entity
established and jointly controlled by the Company and Isuzu, (e) T+ 55
8% (BB /RERITHAEE AR AR Isuzu Qingling (Chongging) Engineering
Co., Ltd ("Isuzu Qingling Engineering”), an associate controlled by Isuzu
and (f) BHEEE HEL(EE)ER A FBosch Hydrogen Powertrain
Systems (Chongging) Co., Ltd. (“Bosch”), 40% equity interest of which is
owned by the Qingling Group. Qingling Group and Isuzu held 50.10% and
20.00% of the equity of the Company respectively as at 31 December
2021. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the above parties are connected
persons of the Group. Details of the continuing connected transactions
with the parties are as follows:
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(@)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Group
and its subsidiaries:

(i

On 26 November 2019, the Company entered into the New
Parts Supply Agreements with Qingling Group (on behalf of
itself and its subsidiaries - QM, Qingling Zhuan Yong, QAC,
Qingling Parts and Keyu Parts), CQCC (on behalf of itself
and its subsidiaries - Qingling Vehicle Parts Manufacturing),
CQFC, CQAC, CONHK, CQPC and CQACL, respectively,
relating to the supply of certain automobile parts by Qingling
Group, CQCC, CQFC, CQAC, CQNHK, CQPC and CQACL,
respectively, to the Company, and the supply of certain
consolidated services by the Company to CQFC and the
lease of certain machineries by the Company to CQAC. With
respect to the automobile parts provided to the Company,
the price is based on actual costs incurred or reasonable
costs (whichever is lower) plus no more than 8% profit
margin determined in the following order: at prices not higher
than market prices; or if no comparable market price, at
prices based on actual costs or reasonable costs (whichever
is lower) incurred plus no more than 8% profit margin, and
in any event, at prices no less favourable than those offered
to independent third parties. The payment shall be made
within one month after receipt of bill. With respect to the
consolidated services provided by the Company to CQFC, the
price is determined based on actual costs incurred plus taxes
payable. With respect to the lease of machineries by the
Company to CQAC, the rental payable is determined based
on normal commercial terms no less favorable than terms
offered by CQAC to independent third parties.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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On 26 November 2019, the Company also entered into the
New Autoparts and Materials Agreement with CQCC, CQFC,
CQACL, CQAC, CQPC, CONHK, QAC, QM, Qingling Zhuan
Yong and Qingling Parts respectively. The Company will
sell to CQCC the scrap metal left over from the Company’s
manufacturing process and the prices shall not be lower
than the market price of scrap metal of the same type
and the price of such scrap metal sold by the Company to
independent third parties (if any); the Company will supply
to CONHK, Qingling Zhuan Yong and Qingling Parts semi-
finished auto parts and the prices of which will be determined
based on costs incurred by the Company plus a profit margin
of not exceeding 8%; and the Company will supply to all
Qingling Autoparts Companies (referring to all subsidiaries of
Qingling Group in the abovementioned agreements) crafting
materials including but not limited to gasoline, diesel, cutting
fluid, tools and equipment, and machinery spare parts which
will be sourced by the Company from suppliers which are
independent and not connected persons to the Company,
and the prices of which will be equivalent to the cost of
sourcing such materials from independent third parties plus
no more than 8% profit margin.

During the year, the amount for the above continuing
connected transactions are as follows:

Sales of automobile parts and others:

with respect to Qingling Group (Note 1): approximately

RMB7,617,000;

with respect to CQCC: approximately RMB18,570,000;

with respect to CQFC: approximately RMB1,863,000;

with respect to CQAC: approximately RMB7,501,000;

with respect to CONHK: approximately RMB11,064,000;

with respect to CQPC: approximately RMB744,000; and

with respect to CQACL: approximately RMB936,000.
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Purchases of automobile parts:

with respect to Qingling Group (Note 2): approximately
RMB68,296,000;

with respect to CQCC: approximately RMB21,250,000;
with respect to CQFC: approximately RMB33,462,000;
with respect to CQAC: approximately RMB397,435,000;
with respect to CONHK: approximately RMB61,775,000;
with respect to CQPC: approximately RMB69,663,000; and
with respect to CQACL: approximately RMB9,737,000.

Supply of consolidated services:

With respect to CQFC: approximately RMB1,616,000.

Lease of machineries:

With respect to CQAC: approximately RMB383,000.

Note 1: Including approximately RMB2,159,000, approximately
RMB2,240,000, approximately RMB1,200,000 and
approximately RMB2,018,000 representing the sales of
parts and raw materials to QM, Qingling Zhuan Yong,
QAC and Qingling Parts respectively during the year.

Note 2: Including approximately RMBO, approximately RMB9,134,000,
approximately RMB50,228,000, approximately RMB3,823,000,
approximately RMB5,111,000 and approximately RMBO
representing the purchases of automobile parts from Qingling
Vehicle Parts Manufacturing, QM, Qingling Zhuan Yong, QAC,
Qingling Parts and Keyu Parts respectively during the year.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Qingling Moulds entered into the New Qingling Group Moulds
Supply Agreement with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
CQCC, CQFC, CQPC, CQACL, CONHK, Isuzu China Engine
and CQAC at a price determined on normal commercial terms
on 26 November 2019, relating to the supply of moulds and
related products and maintenance and/or processing services
by Qingling Moulds to the aforesaid companies. As there are
no sufficient comparable transactions, the price is determined
after arm’s length negotiations between the parties thereto
with reference to reasonable costs incurred, plus a profit
margin of not exceeding 8% and the consideration payable,
the terms offered to Qingling Moulds shall be no less
favourable than terms offered to independent third parties.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was RMBO.

The Company entered into the New Chassis Supply Agreement
with the Qingling Group (on behalf of itself and its
subsidiaries - Qingling Zhuan Yong) on 26 November 2019,
relating to the sale of automobile chassis and related
components by the Company to Qingling Group, the price
is determined with reference to the market price of chassis
and related components with a credit period of three to
six months after the sale. During the year, the amount of
the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,056,133,000.

The Company entered into the New Warehouse Leasing
Agreement on 26 November 2019 with Qingling Group (for
itself and on behalf of its wholly-owned subsidiary-Keyu
Parts), relating to the lease of (i) warehouse: an open-air
warehouse with an area of approximately 25,833.51 m?, an
indoor warehouse with an area of approximately 50,000 m?,
(i) a parcel of land with an area of approximately 20,697 m? to
be used as site for auto parts test, experiment and operation,
(iii) a parcel of land with an area of approximately 19,880.4 m?
to be used as site for storage of auto parts and raw materials,
(iv) a parcel of land with an area of approximately 10,000 m?,
(v) a house used as cultural and educational center with an
area of approximately 4,784.28 m?; and (vi) a parcel of land
located at the east of Chongging Qingling Forging Co. Ltd.
with an area of approximately 22,507.7 m? by Qingling Group
(or its wholly-owned subsidiary-Keyu Parts) to the Company
at a consideration of approximately RMB5,840,000,
RMB961,000, RMB923,000, RMB464,000, RMB830,000,
and RMB1,029,000 (VAT exclusive), respectively per annum.
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For the above item (i), the leasing consideration is determined
after negotiations between the parties, on normal commercial
terms, and (for the Company) at prices not higher than
market prices or no less favourable than those offered by
Qingling Group to independent third parties. For the above
lands mentioned in item (ii) to item (iv), the considerations
are determined after negotiations between the parties, on
normal commercial terms with reference to the prevailing
market rent and current rent payable by the Group under the
warehouses leasing agreements, and (for the Company) at
prices not higher than market prices or no less favourable
than those offered by Qingling Group to independent third
parties. For the above lands/properties mentioned in item
(v) and Item (vi), the considerations are determined after
negotiations between the parties, on normal commercial
terms, and (for the Company) at prices no less favourable
than those offered by the Company for leasing of comparable
properties from independent third parties. The directors
(including independent non-executive directors) are of the
view that the New Warehouse Leasing Agreement is fair and
reasonable, such transactions will continue to be conducted
on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, and, such transactions
(including the rents payable by the Company), are in the
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company entered into the New Machinery Leasing
Agreement with CQFC on 26 November 2019, relating to the
lease of machineries for further processing of casting and
forging parts from CQFC by the Company. The considerations
payable are determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties thereto, on normal commercial terms,
and (for the Company) with leasing terms no less favourable
than those offered by CQFC to independent third parties.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB4,500,000.

The Company entered into the New Qingling Group Equipment
Lease with the Qingling Group on 26 November 2019,
relating to the lease of equipment, namely the 110kVA
electrical substation and its ancillary facilities from Qingling
Group by the Company. The rent for the Leased Equipment
(Qingling Group) is determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties thereto, on normal commercial terms,
and (for the Company) with terms no less favourable than
those offered by Qingling Group to independent third parties.
The Company shall pay the rent for the quarter within one
month after the end of such quarter by crediting a bank
account specified by the Qingling Group. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB875,000.
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TR AFERNEEREERERBA The details and amount of the above connected transactions with
Al BER ZFIE RS EINENERE I Qingling Group and its subsidiaries during the year are set out in
TERERMIEEI70) note 37(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

b) HEEREAESEFEMELS (b)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Moulds:
RZE-—NFE+—AZ+"H KRQF On 26 November 2019, the Company and Qingling Moulds entered
HEREASETOTHE - into the following agreements:

() HFERELHERE  ATER () The New Qingling Moulds Supply Agreement, relating to the

EREARAQRREER XA supply of moulds and related products and maintenance and
FAE mAMEES R IN TR - A processing services by Qingling Moulds to the Company,
NEFEREEREERER - T the supply of raw materials, processing services, and
IR Mz & RS - BRFENRR consolidated services by the Company to Qingling Moulds
KB REERYG - RERE including but not limited to water, electricity and gas supply
MIRERT - BEMEERSE R services, equipment repair and maintenance services,
“TERBRS - TEER—REE medical and hygiene services and the Three Warranties. The
BRETE  MERRIELERR price is determined on normal commercial terms, or if there
SHEERTE —MEERNE are no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
E o BIRBEARRRFAREZIK they are on normal commercial terms, on terms fair and
RERE ° reasonable to the Company.
RAFER  RIEBEFEBE During the year, the purchase amount of the continuing
REMNEESBHOAARE connected transaction was approximately R\MB34,640,000,
34,640,0007C ' SEES RN AA the sales amount was approximately RMB659,000 and the
R #659,0007t MirA RE WA consolidated services income was RMB1,309,000.

AE#1,309,0007T °

(i) FEKREBEAEMEY RABERER (i)  The New Qingling Moulds Lease, relating to the lease of
BEMAQRRERUAEES a parcel of land with an area of 7,420 m? on the Land from
7,420 F FoRkey L - LARERE the Company to be used for the production of Qingling
REAEZHEERE  A8HARZ Moulds, and the effective period is from 1 January 2020 to
TEF-A—HEZZT=-= 31 December 2022. The rent for the Land (Qingling Moulds)
+—A=+—H - £ (EKIE is determined with reference to the prevailing market rent
BWHE H2ERTMSHES R and the rent paid by Qingling Moulds under the Qingling
EREAREBEERELBOIN Moulds Lease, after arm'’s length negotiations between the
MEE WIS AFEREE parties thereto and on normal commercial terms, and (for the
E—REEREZRERRAMm Company) with terms no less favourable than those offered
B)NBRARBRBLIE=F1R by the Company to independent third parties. The monthly
HZIERMETE - RIBHFERER rent under the New Qingling Moulds Lease is RMB3,587.35
A% - AR ARYK3,687.35 per month. During the year, the amount of the continuing
JCo AFEA F RERFEBER connected transaction was approximately RMB43,000.

SHE L B AREA3,0007T °
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(c)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Isuzu:

(i

(ii)

(iif)

On 26 November 2019, the Company entered into the
New lIsuzu Supply Agreement with Isuzu whereby Isuzu
provides the Company with certain automobile parts and
components produced by Isuzu and which are required in the
production processes. As there are no sufficient comparable
transactions, the price of the Company’s purchases of
automobile parts and components is determined with
reference to actual or reasonable costs (whichever is lower)
incurred plus a profit margin of not more than 10%, and the
payment shall be made at the time of delivery. During the
year, the amount of the continuing connected transaction
was approximately RMB154,852,000.

On 26 November 2019, the Company entered into the
New Company Supply Agreement with Isuzu whereby the
Company provides Isuzu and/or its wholly-owned subsidiaries
with complete vehicle, set of components and other
automobile parts. As there are no sufficient comparable
transactions, the price is determined in accordance with
actual or reasonable costs (whichever is lower) incurred
plus a profit margin of not more than 10%, and the payment
shall be made within 40 days after delivery. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB5,014,000.

During the year, the Company continued the transactions
under the technology transfer agreements and technology
licensing agreements with Isuzu entered on 20 February
2000, 23 May 2008, and 27 April 2016 for the transfer of
technology and provision of technical know-how and the
permission to use the trademark of Isuzu by Isuzu to the
Company for the production and sales of F series Chassis and
related parts and components, 700P3X series vehicles and
related parts and components, CYH vehicles, CYZ vehicles
and EXR/EXZ vehicles.

Pursuant to the F Chassis Technology Transfer Agreement,
the price is set at an initial fee (which has already been
fully paid by the Company to Isuzu), plus royalties, which
is determined with reference to the price of the parts
and components manufactured and sold by the Company
pursuant to the agreement, staff training fees and technical
assistance fees.
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Pursuant to the 700P3X Series Technology Transfer Agreement,
the price is set as the product development and production
technical support fee (which has already been fully paid by
the Company to Isuzu) plus a commission fee calculated at
3% of the on-site added value of each vehicle. The on-site
added value is determined by reference to the wholesale
price of the vehicle less the aggregate of the import price
of relevant parts and components, the price of parts and
components with standard specifications and the price of
engine assembly and parts.

Pursuant to the Technology Licence Agreements, for the sale
of each CYH, CYZ and EXR/EXZ vehicles, the price is set as
3% of the on-site added value of each vehicle. The on-site
added value is determined by reference to the wholesale
price of the vehicle less the aggregate of the import price
of relevant parts and components, the price of parts and
components with standard specifications and the price of
licensed engines.

In addition, the Company entered into the 3XCAB Agreement
with Isuzu on 23 June 2016, pursuant to which, Isuzu will
continue to provide technology and technical know-how, staff
training and technical assistance in relation to the Company’s
production of driving cabs as defined under the relevant
agreement in respect of the licensed vehicles as defined
under the agreement on production and sale and permit the
Company to use the trademark and emblem of “ISUZU". The
transaction pricing with respect to the transfer of technology
and provision of technical know-how is set as commission
fee, payable by the Company to Isuzu in relation to the sale
of each permitted vehicle, which is calculated at 3% of the
on-site added value of each vehicle (the on-site added value is
determined by reference to the wholesale price of the vehicle
less the aggregate of the import price of relevant parts and
components and the price of parts and components with
standard specifications). For the use of the trademark of Isuzu,
JPY2,000 is payable to Isuzu in relation to the sale of each
permitted vehicle.

Also, the Company and Isuzu made the Trademark Licensing
Agreement on 26 March 2021. Isuzu continues to grant the
Company a non-transferable right to use the trademarks and
emblems of Isuzu, “ISUZU" and “F+#5", in the sale of
the 600P, 100P and TF/UC series vehicles produced by the
Company from 28 March 2021 to the expiry date of the term
as stipulated by relevant PRC rules or regulations, and the
License fee for each series of vehicle is as follows: JPY2,000
for each 600P series vehicle sold, JPY1,500 for each 100P
series vehicle sold and JPY1,500 for each TF/UC series
vehicle sold.
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During the year, the amount incurred for the continuing
connected transaction under the technology transfer
agreements, technology licensing agreements and Trademark
Licensing Agreement was approximately RMB17,655,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transactions with
Isuzu during the year are set out in note 37(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Significant continuing connected transactions with Isuzu China
Engine:

On 26 November 2019, the Company and Isuzu China Engine
entered into the following agreements:

(i) The New Supply Agreement, relating to the provision of
parts of engines and raw materials by the Company to
Isuzu China Engine whereas Isuzu China Engine provides
engines and their parts to the Company. The Agreement shall
be effective from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022, and
may be renewed at expiration with the consent of the Parties
and with the consent of the Stock Exchange and/or the
approval of the Shareholders in accordance with the Listing
Rules, if necessary. As there are no sufficient comparable
Transactions, the selling price of the products to be supplied/
purchased shall be the actual costs of the supplying party
plus a profit margin of not exceeding 10%. Such premium
shall be finalised by both parties on the basis that it is fair and
reasonable to both parties. Payment for the previous month
shall be made to the supplier by the end of each month.
During the year, the purchase amount of the continuing
connected transaction was approximately RMB960,756,000
and the selling amount was approximately RMB387,409,000.

(i) The New Consolidated Services Agreement, relating to the
provision of certain services (including services such as
water and gas supply, transportation, equipment repair and
maintenance, medical and hygiene and three warranties) by
the Company to Isuzu China Engine. The Agreement shall
be effective from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The
actual price for the services to be provided by the Company
under the New Consolidated Services Agreement or any
further specific agreement(s) shall be the actual costs of the
Company plus taxes payable. During the year, the amount
of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,609,000.
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(iii)

(iv)

The New Equipment Lease, relating to the lease of leased
equipment by the Company to Isuzu China Engine. The
Agreement shall be effective from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2022. The rent for the Lease Equipment
(Isuzu China Engine) is determined on normal commercial
terms through arm’s length negotiations between the
parties thereto as well as (for the Company) on terms no
less favourable than those offered by the Company to
independent third parties, with reference to the market value
of Lease Equipment (Isuzu China Engine). During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB42,210,000.

The New Factory Lease, relating to the lease of land and
factory buildings by the Company to Isuzu China Engine.
The Agreement shall be effective from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2022. The monthly rent is approximately
RMB351,000 (VAT exclusive). The rents for the Lease
Land and the Factory Premises are determined on normal
commercial terms through arm’s length negotiations
between the parties thereto as well as (for the Company) on
terms no less favourable than those offered by the Company
to independent third parties. During the year, the amount
of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB4,210,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transactions with

Isuzu China Engine during the year are also set out in note 37(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu
Sales:

On 26 November 2019, the Company and Qingling Isuzu Sales
entered into the following agreements:

(i) The New Sales JV Lease, relating to the lease of the Sales
JV Leased Land and Sales JV Premises by the Company to
Qingling Isuzu Sales. The lease agreement shall be effective
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The rent for
the Sales JV Leased Land and the Sales JV Premises is
determined on normal commercial terms through arm’s
length negotiations between the parties thereto as well as
(for the Company) on terms no less favourable than those
offered by the Company to independent third parties. The
monthly rent is approximately RMB130,000. On 9 November
2021, the Company entered into a termination agreement
with Sales JV Company with respect to the termination of
the New Sales JV Lease and the Lease was terminated
in advance. During the year, the amount of the continuing
connected transaction was approximately RMB1,165,000.

(i)  The New Sales JV Supply Agreement, relating to the
provision of automobiles and parts by the Company to
Qingling Isuzu Sales. The Agreement shall be effective
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022 and may be
renewed at expiration with the consent of the Parties and
with the consent of the Stock Exchange and/or the approval
of the Shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules,
if necessary. The actual selling prices of the automobiles
or their parts to be supplied/purchased under other related
terms in any other specific agreement shall not be lower than
the market prices of the automobiles or their parts and shall
not be lower than the prices offered to independent third
parties. If there are no comparable market prices, prices shall
be based on actual costs or reasonable costs (whichever is
lower) incurred plus a profit margin of not more than 8%.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB13,293,000.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions with
Qingling Isuzu Sales during the year are set out in note 37(iv) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Continuing connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling Engineering:

On 26 November 2019, the Company and Isuzu Qingling
Engineering entered into the following agreements:

(i) The New Consolidated Services Agreement (Isuzu Qingling
Engineering), relating to the provision of certain services
(including services such as water, electricity and gas supply,
vehicle rental supply, telecommunication, network cable
lease and other support) by the Company to Isuzu Qingling
Engineering. The Agreement shall be effective from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The price of the service
to be provided by the Company under the New Consolidated
Services Agreement (Isuzu Qingling Engineering) or any
further individual service contract is determined at the actual
costs of the Company plus taxes payable. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB101,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transaction with
Isuzu Qingling Engineering during the year are also set out in note
37(v) to the consolidated financial statements.

Continuing connected transactions with Bosch:

On 30 December 2021, the Company and Bosch entered into
the Supply Agreement in respect of the supply of hydrogen-
powered modules by Bosch to the Company. The Agreement shall
be effective from 30 August 2021 (or the date which the Supply
Agreement complies with all relevant approval formalities and/or
other approval procedures under the Listing Rules (if applicable)
whichever is later) to 31 December 2022. The price is based on
the industry benchmark price of a fair market. During the year, the
amount of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB53,757,000.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions
with Bosch during the year are also set out in note 37(vi) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Other Continuing Connected Transactions:

The Company, Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Engineering
entered into the New Testing Agreement on 26 November 2019,
relating to the provision of testing services (including but not limited
to smoking tests, external property tests and combustion analysis
tests for full-loading and steady rolling engines; temperature
resistance tests for vehicles; and endurance tests and vibration
tests for parts) by the Company to Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu
Qingling Engineering. The Agreement shall be effective from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Prices for services provided
shall not be less than the market prices. If there are no comparable
market prices, prices shall be determined based on the actual or
reasonable costs incurred (whichever is lower) plus a profit margin
of not more than 8%. During the year, the Company did not provide
the testing services to Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling
Engineering.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions with
Isuzu China Engine during the year are also set out in note 37(iii)to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company's auditor was engaged to conduct audit work in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Pursuant to the Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules, the auditor has issued a letter to the Board of the
Company that nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group (except those de minimize transactions which are fully
exempted pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules):

1. have not been approved by the listed issuer’s board of directors;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

3. were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the agreements of the relevant transactions; and

4. have exceeded the annual caps set by the Company.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company confirm
that the transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary and usual course of its business, on normal commercial
terms or better and in accordance with the agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(i)

On 27 April 2016, the Company and Isuzu entered into (i) the CYH
Technology Licence Agreement; (ii) the CYZ Technology Licence
Agreement; and (i) the EXR/EXZ Technology Licence Agreement,
respectively, in relation to the provision of technology and technical
know-how, staff training and technical assistance and the licence
to use the trademark and the emblem of Isuzu by Isuzu to the
Company for the production and sale of (i) CYH; (ii) CYZ; and (iii)
EXR/EXZ vehicles in the PRC on an non-exclusive basis.

For the CYH Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee of
JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (i) 10% of the initial fee for each of the sample vehicles
CYH®, CYH®, CYH® and CYH® and a total of 40% of the initial
fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of completion
of the provision of each CYH vehicles confirmed in writing by both
the Company and Isuzu; and (iii) 5% of the initial fee for each of the
sample vehicles CYH®, CYH®, CYH® and CYH® and a total of
20% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date
of the bulk production of each CYH vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu.

For the CYZ Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee of
JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (ii) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days
from the date of completion of the provision of technical know-
how confirmed in writing by both the Company and Isuzu; and (iii)
20% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date
of the bulk production of the CYZ vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu.
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For the EXR/EXZ Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee
of JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (ii) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days
from the date of completion of the provision of technical know-how
confirmed in writing by both the Company and Isuzu; and (iii) 20%
of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of
the bulk production of the EXR/EXZ vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu.

The Company also has to pay royalties to Isuzu in relation to the
sale of each CYH, CYZ and EXR/EXZ vehicles, which are calculated
at 3% of the on-site added value of each vehicle.

No payment was conducted in the current period because the CYH
agreement is no longer being developed.

On 4 July 2018, the Company and Isuzu entered into ()VC66(CYH)
National VIb Technology Development Agreement; (ii)
VCB6(CYZ) National VIb Technology Development Agreement;
and (iii)VCB6(EXR/EXZ) National VIb Technology Development
Agreement, respectively. The Company engaged Isuzu to carry out
design change related development for the relevant (i)VC61(CYH),
(i)VCB1(CYZ) and (iii)VCB1(EXR/EXZ) basic vehicles so as to
allow the equipment of such vehicles with the sample engine for
VC66 series vehicles and ensure compliance with the relevant
National VIb emission regulations and other regulations required by
certifications on model (announcement), oil consumption, safety
and CCC, compliance with the same CAN (Control Area Network)
communication standard as used for the basic vehicles, and to
provide technical guidance or study services. Isuzu shall submit the
Company with the relevant technical information together with a
set of documents and electronic data recording the details of such
technical information in accordance with the agreement. The term
of the agreement is from 28 June 2017 to the date of completion
of payment of consideration under the agreement.

In respect of the VC66(CYH) National VIb Technology Development
Agreement, the Company shall pay the consideration to Isuzu in the
following way: (a) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30 days from
the date of entering into of the VC66(CYH) National Vib Technology
Development Agreement; (b) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30
days upon completion of Isuzu's provision of relevant information
on development technology to the Company as confirmed by both
parties in writing; (c) Payment of JPY62,678,000 within 30 days
from the date of commencement of manufacturing and assembling
vehicles using the relevant information on development technology.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

39



40

EEERE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

RAVC66(CYZ)EVIbH: 7Bl 2 17 3%
AAREEATHARINARETFRT
£ ¢ (a)FAVC66(CYZ) BV Ib R T B 3173
REE]A#B30RA - X 14125,356,000
BE : b)REHEmMER  A+HHEA
NERERERAERiER TR AR
30K » 14125,356,000H & : ()
{55 AR RAR BRI {E B ALE FIEH A
B ABEEBEE30KA - X
62,678,0008 & -

R VCE6(EXR/EXZ)EIVIbH: fi 5 %
Wik RARERUTARIZ AR
BFE+4 : (a)AVCBB(EXR/EXZ)E
VIbE TR 3 W% 5] H#E30KR A
X 11257,284,0008 8 : (b)REHZE
R A+HAAQFIREEEH
BRMEB 2K BEI0OKRA » N
257,284,000 8 : (c)p\ME FAERE M 2
AT B T Bk A AR 2 (N EE 4 B AA Y
B H 30K A - %14128,642,000H

8| o

bt T BB TR TR 2 KB TR
BRMTEN EmWBRIRNAEE2E
EAEMA BRI A AR EM
BE o M EBENRERING A T%E
1) 7R B AT 4N 2 TRIR AR R AN R R )
E+#ARBEAS -

RAR])2018F E BE())VCB6(CYH)EIVIb
FilrF#EHZE  (11))VC66(CYZ)EVIb
RMTBAEs s+ (i) VCBB6(EXR/EXZ)
BEVIbE ARSI FETR
125,356,000 & - 125,356,000 8 [E &
257,284,0008 & °

A 700P3X (F4#4JZ1 1505 S EIVIb)
R - &5 BA580,370,000
BEEAARATHRAT ARSI N TR+
2 (WVERERZA0%EBMEETEK
AR E B ERES0B AT ¢ (B R
BERZI0%EEBARAANGEAHHEER
REAiTE B R A 2 A HI30A R
T Relii) B R B 2 20%E 8 AN A T
B RS EMBERIOPAEASEE
2 BHRE30B AT - BEEM2019F
{7232,148,000H 8] » FEARHEARZ T ©

ABENARFRER 52 BEISHFE
KGRI AR & M H ¥R M 37 (i) -

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

In respect of the VC66(CYZ) National VIb Technology Development
Agreement, the Company shall pay the consideration to Isuzu in the
following way: (a) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30 days from
the date of entering into of the VC66(CYZ) National VIb Technology
Development Agreement; (b) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30
days upon completion of Isuzu’s provision of relevant information
on development technology to the Company as confirmed by both
parties in writing; (c) Payment of JPY62,678,000 within 30 days
from the date of commencement of manufacturing and assembling
vehicles using the relevant information on development technology.

In respect of the VC66(EXR/EXZ) National Vib Technology
Development Agreement, the Company shall pay the consideration
to Isuzu in the following way: (a) Payment of JPY257,284,000
within 30 days from the date of entering into of the VC66(EXR/EXZ)
National VIb Technology Development Agreement; (b) Payment
of JPY257,284,000 within 30 days upon completion of Isuzu's
provision of relevant information on development technology to the
Company as confirmed by both parties in writing; (c) Payment of
JPY 128,642,000 within 30 days from the date of commencement
of manufacturing and assembling vehicles using the relevant
information on development technology.

The consideration payable under the above agreements is
determined based on the technical advancement and market
prospect of products and with reference to the consideration under
the technology licence agreements of other companies in the
industry. The above payments shall be made by the Company to
Isuzu in JPY after deduction of taxes payable by Isuzu to the PRC
government.

In 2018, the Company paid JPY 125,356,000, JPY125,356,000 and
JPY257,284,000 to Isuzu in respect of (i) VC66(CYH) National VIb
Technology Development Agreement : (ii) VC66(CYZ) National
VIb Technology Development Agreement; and (iii) VC66(EXR/EXZ)
National VIb Technology Development Agreement, respectively,
and no payment in current period about the above three contracts.

For the 700P3X (with 4JZ1 150 horsepower National VIb) Technology
Development Agreement, an initial fee of JPY580,370,000 is
payable by the Company to Isuzu in the following manners: (i)
40% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the
date of approval granted by the relevant PRC authorities; (ii) 40%
of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of
completion of the provision of technical know-how confirmed in
writing by both the Company and Isuzu; and (iii) 20% of the initial
fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of the bulk
production of the 700P vehicles confirmed in writing by both the
Company and Isuzu. The entity pays JPY232,148,000 in 2019,
which was not paid in the current period.

The details and amounts of the connected transaction with Isuzu
during the year are also set out in note 37(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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On 18 September 2018, the Company convened a Board meeting
at which the proposal regarding the Merger was considered and
approved. Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts entered
into the Merger Agreement on 2 October 2018 (after trading hours),
pursuant to which, Isuzu China Engine will absorb and merge
with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts, and Isuzu China Engine will be the
surviving company upon completion of the Merger and assume all
the assets, liabilities, operations, qualifications, personnel, contracts
and all other rights and obligations of Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts will be dissolved and deregistered.
Further, on 2 October 2018 (after trading hours), the Company,
Qingling Group and Isuzu also entered into (i) the JV Agreement
to set out their respective rights and obligations in Isuzu China
Engine in accordance with the Merger; and (ii) the Priority Supply
Memorandum to set out the agreement in relation to the priority
supply of goods by Isuzu China Engine to the Company.

The proportion of the capital contribution by the Company, Qingling
Group and Isuzu to Isuzu China Engine upon completion of the
Merger are determined with reference to their respective capital
contribution to Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
before the Merger and the net asset values of Isuzu China Engine
and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts as valued by the Independent
Valuer with 31 December 2017 as the valuation benchmark date.
According to the Isuzu China Engine Valuation Report and the
Isuzu Qingling Autoparts Valuation Report, the total interests of
Shareholders of Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
as at 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB884,919,700 and
RMB1,404,035,500, respectively. The amount and proportion of
their respective capital contribution are set out in the table below:

HE & ie1:4:0)

BREE Amount of capital Proportion of
Name of Shareholder contribution capital contribution
(1)
(USD)
142 Isuzu 164,107,986 50.61%
EREE Qingling Group 97,472,556 30.06%
PIN/NG] The Company 62,679,458 19.33%
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RNEBEAHRFPEEEH IR FE The Existing Continuing Connected Transactions entered into

FERX 5B between the Group with Isuzu China Engine include the followings:

(a) ARNTEHEATRFBEEESEN = (@) the New Supply Agreement dated 26 November 2019
- NE+—AZ+BEIZH entered into between the Company and Isuzu China Engine
RS RAERARER relating to the provision of parts of engines and raw materials
AR RSB REHEHRT by the Company to Isuzu China Engine, and the provision
HHEREME - ARBA RSP of engines and their parts by Isuzu China Engine to the
Bl B Bk R AN RIIR L EE DI 2 Company;

HEHM

(b) AAFEAELPEESHEN = (b)  the New Equipment Lease dated 26 November 2019 entered
E-NF+—AZ+RBFIX into between the Company and Isuzu China Engine relating
R ERLY  REERARQF] to the leasing of the Leased Equipment by the Company to
MA+RPEESRALEER Isuzu China Engine;

1

(c) AREHEATRPBEZESHEN= (c)  the New Factory Lease dated 26 November 2019 entered
E-NF+—AZ+RBFIX into between the Company and Isuzu China Engine relating
FIRAEL - RRERAREM to the leasing of the Leased Land and the Factory Premises
AL BI B AR A E by the Company to Isuzu China Engine;

BRI :

(d ZAAEEATRPBEESHEN (d the New Consolidated Services Agreement dated 26
E-NF+—AZ+RBFIX November 2019 entered into between the Company and Isuzu
TR e R%HE - NBBERAR China Engine relating to the provision of certain services by
Al A TR E B E IR T the Company to Isuzu China Engine; and
RS : &

(@ ARARHE(EPBE)RTRSP (g the New Testing Agreement dated 26 November 2019

BEgsHEn _——LF+—A
ZHRBRIZEFAIRGE - A
BRARARBRA+HRPEES
R HE TRISARTS -

entered into between the Company and, among others, Isuzu
China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts relating to the
provision of certain testing services by the Company to Isuzu
China Engine.

RMEEHTEME - BRAE+HHRPEE
PR AFERRL S AET TRER
METHHHNEHEE AF - ¥
BHE - AB - AREEM— YT EE
% A LBBEOMERRE RS TE
(FREZBERTEAOTHATRER
METEARAATRTEESHE) M
A+ EEBREEEETERE TR
EITHORERERS °

Following the conclusion of the Merger, Isuzu China Engine, being
the surviving company, would assume all the assets, liabilities,
operations, qualification, personnel, contracts and all other rights
and obligations of Isuzu Qingling Autoparts, all the terms under
the aforesaid agreements, therefore, will remain unchanged,
except that the name of the party to an agreement will be changed
from Isuzu Qingling Autoparts to Isuzu China Engine in certain
circumstances (as appropriate), and Isuzu China Engine will
continue to proceed with the continuing connected transactions
contemplated thereunder.

42 3% 2021 ANNUAL REPORT



(ivy RZE-_—F=A=-+/XB  ~RAH
EBEREREHES Bt - A27
AEMFITMPRARETAPE=Z
—N\FRA+TMHANZHRERERE
PR ARZERBBAE_TE-NFNAZ
B2 ESFHRE(ZFHRDRER
HASMARKS00ET MEXKHE
RIEEREZSHREEMES AR
HREHRANER  BEERIARINY
HEMEBSAKEE RS - ZRREST
BREE ERERAU(BEETER
EHHRANEENRE  BEREAKS
TEWEFIAEBE R A BTG S
BIREHLARQT]

EAREBETZAERF R DNEUES
RERB T BHRERMTEI7()E (vii) ° 5% F
FEARSIER ETRAFE14ASZTE
ENBERSUFERERS  MES
ERRARNFEREZERFBTLTR
BIZB14AZHIRT -

IXHERRER

BHE_Z-—F+-A=+—HIFE &&
ERAANEEE L EFEERE15.29% - A8
SRR EEE.60% © B2 £ B N =B
PR ARBZ—MEERARIRATREBE
HESHRBETFAEERZ —BBEAE S AT
HEASEZAAHEER - HERKEBRE
WMEAR  REATHRZXSFHFBEEHNREX
[FER S| —fA - B LElFEEN  HE-T
T F+-AZ+—BIFE ARAREBEK
BEE . HB B ASIRRE(EESSHME
B5% A EARRNG ZRAR) - BHEESAEE
AR EREAERS HE T -_—F+—=-HA
—t+—BULFE  BEREAARARF  BRE
BRHEAN  AEBAREFELHAHEEER
AEBRIHERE 225.23% ©

EEERE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

(iv)  On 26 March 2021, the Company entered into an agreement with
Qingling Zhuan Yong, pursuant to which the Company agreed
to pay RMB89 million to Qingling Zhuan Yong regarding the
Judgment by FIITFHARER the Shenzhen Intermediate
People’'s Court on 14 May 2018 and the Judgement by BEEE S
M AREPT the Guangdong Higher People’s Court on 2 August
2019 (the”Judgments”), and Qingling Zhuan Yong also agreed to
recover the debts under the Judgments from the other debtors
in accordance with the Judgments. In the event that Qingling
Zhuan Yong successfully recovers any amount of such debts from
the other debtors, subject to the compliance with the relevant
provisions of applicable laws, regulations and rules (including
but not limited to the Listing Rules), it will, upon receipt of such
amount, return the remaining amount after deducting its cost
incurred therefrom to the Company.

The information of the related party transactions entered into by
the Group is set out in note 37(i) to (vii) to the consolidated financial
statements. Those related party transactions also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and the Board confirms
that the Company has complied with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for those transactions.

FIVE LARGEST SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases from five largest
suppliers accounted for 15.29% of the total purchases of the Group. The
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for 5.60% of the total
purchases. Qingling Group and its subsidiaries, a joint venture of the
Company and a Japanese trading company, through which Isuzu channels
its supply of parts and components to the Group, are included in the five
largest suppliers of the Group. Details of transactions with Qingling Group
and its subsidiaries and with Isuzu are set out in the section “Connected
Transactions” above. Other than disclosed above, the Company's
directors and supervisors, their associates or any Shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital), did not have any interests in the Group's five largest
suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2021. For the year ended 31
December 2021, Qingling Zhuan Yong was the largest customer. The
aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers (except
Qingling Zhuan Yong) were less than 25.23% of the Group's total sales.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not issue or grant any convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year.

There were no outstanding or conversion of convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the Company or
its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity during the year.

DESIGNATED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not hold any designated deposits
or any time deposits that were overdue but could not be collected upon
maturity.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, none of the Company or its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 2,934 employees (2020: 2,980
employees). During the year, no material change was noted for the
number of employees or their remuneration policy. The Group actively
formulated and implemented various training to its staff of all levels.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the Group's staff retirement benefits scheme are set out in
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquires to all directors and
supervisors, the Company confirms that all directors and supervisors
have complied with the requirements of the Model Code during the year.



RSB
RDF 2 AT SR EA R EEBRIE 5

o
A °

N

|

ofs

DEE

ARREEERT
TRER &%JW

A2 BRI EA6E63H

-

LRSRE

E-Z——FHRH ﬁE%J%ZK BIESHRFE
HESEEEMAE  BARFAEPNDRAR
AR &I 225% @ HMARKFIRERHA °

FHRRE

BRLZERCEARAEERE MRHENERN T
A B2 B RR BRI SRR -
NEEZERMBEREER - SEEMNEBE—F
TF T A=t AR REREAY
B -

52 L]

FRBEREHEXEAMEBMERERE
B)REEe MERT ST ANRRAKE
Mz rERBR S FRRAFAS LR

EFEHNEE

B FTHRANEI1351BNE  R2E-—4F
NAZ+EABBBARG T -_—FFH
REEE_TE-_—_F=ZA-THA(ERA
ARRZZE-—FFRED)PE  WESSH
?ﬁ%ﬁ 3512EF @ ZE B NE(QFMTERE

EEEGH
BFX
EESS

RE EE
- —#=A—-+HH

EEERE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles
of Association.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” from pages 46 to 63.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, there is sufficient public float as
not less than 25% of the Company's issued shares are held by the public
throughout the year 2021.

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS

The audit committee has reviewed with the management and auditors
of the Company the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting
matters including the review of the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting for 2022 to
re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, during the period
from 27 August 2021 (the date of 2021 interim report of the Company)
to 25 March 2022 (the date of the 2021 annual report of the Company),
there is no change in information regarding the Directors that is required
to be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2).

By order of the Board
LUO Yuguang
CHAIRMAN

Chongaing, the PRC
25 March 2022
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The Company puts high emphasis on and endeavors to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance. The Board believes that good
corporate governance practices are important to promote investors’
confidence and protect the interest of our Shareholders. The Company
attaches importance to our staff, our code of conduct and our corporate
policies and standards, which together form the basis of our corporate
governance practices. The Board has adopted sound corporate
governance and disclosure practices, and is committed to continuously
improving those practices and cultivating an ethical corporate culture.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied with
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code that were in force
during the year (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), save and except for the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code as
the chairman of the Board (who was also the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company) was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2021 due to his works.

THE BOARD

Members of the Board are accountable to the shareholders for the success
and sustainable development of the Company. The Board is responsible
for the management of all the important issues of the Company, including
the duties of convening general meetings, implementing the resolutions
passed at the general meetings, determining the operating strategies
and investment proposals of the Company, formulating the plans of the
Company for annual financial budgets and final accounts, establishing
and approving the internal control and risk management systems and
monitoring the performance of the members of the senior management.
The directors shall make objective decisions for the interests of the
Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted board diversity policy in September 2013 to comply
with the new code provisions in relation to board diversity effective from
September 2013.

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company shall
take into account our business operations and select candidates with
appropriate and necessary skills and experience and those who can
express their views in a multi-angle perspective. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates wiill bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board of the Company is comprised of
11 members, including 7 executive directors and 4 independent non-
executive directors. Independent non-executive directors account for
36.4% of the number of Board members.

An analysis of the Board based on a scope of diversity perspective is set
forth below:

70-79 21-30

FRAR
Age Group

BRAS 5

Length of Service

Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi, Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro and Mr. ADACHI Katsumi
have tendered their resignation as executive directors of the Company
due to work reallocation. Mr. YASUTA Tatsuya, Mr. MASUDA Yoichi and
Mr. YAGI Naoto were elected as executive directors of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 30 July
2021 to succeed Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi, Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro and Mr.
ADACHI Katsumi as executive directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board of the Company is
comprised of 11 Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

Mr. YASUTA Tatsuya (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
Mr. MASUDA Yoichi

Mr. YAGI Naoto

Mr. LI Juxing

Mr. XU Song

Mr. LI Xiaodong

B2 /AHE D AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LONG Tao

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
Mr. LIU Tianni

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

Biographical particulars of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"“Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, all the Directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and their
re-election is subject to a vote of the Shareholders.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the existing independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE
BOARD

The Board determines the overall strategies of the Company, and
monitors the performance of the senior management and the related
risks and control systems so as to achieve the development objectives
of the Company. Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated
to the executive Directors and the senior management, who are required
to report back to the Board. All the members of the Board have separate
and independent access to the senior management, and are provided
with full and timely information about the conduct of the business
and development of the Company, including monthly reports and
recommendations on significant matters.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the committees under
the Board, and will seek independent and professional advices from them
in respect of related matters.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy. In 2021, the

AIBATIOREFEEE  NIASESR Company held 10 Board meetings, and the attendance record of each
ZECFHEEFERNDFLE Director at the board meetings in 2021 is set out below:
BatmE BEARHEE
= FHERY SEWRB ()
Attendance in Person/ Attendance by Proxy/
Directors Number of Meetings Number of Meetings (Note7)
RiTES
Executive Directors
BFHEE(EER) 8/8 2/2
Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)
MWE— 54 (BIEF R RAFLTE) 5/5 0/0
RZZE=—F+A=THED)
Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
(resigned on 30 July 2021)
L HBIRBEE (FIEFRRAELHE) 5/5 0/0
RZZB_—F+tHA=1THEZD
Mr. YASUTA Tatsuya (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
(appointed on 30 July 2021)
AEE—REdE (R —F+A=THEHI) 3/3 2/2
Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro (resigned on 30 July 2021)
EEEB-EER_ZE_—FtA=THEZD 4/4 ”n
Mr. MASUDA Yoichi (appointed on 30 July 2021)
ER A (RZE—FtA=+RHED) 3/3 2/2
Mr. ADACHI Katsumi (resigned on 30 July 2021)
NAREAFEERZZE_—FtA=THEZE) 4/4 171
Mr. YAGI Naoto (appointed on 30 July 2021)
FERLE 9/9 11
Mr. LI Juxing
RINE A 9/9 171
Mr. XU Song
FINREE 9/9 171
Mr. LI Xiaodong
BIUARTEE
Independent Non-executive Directors
b 10/10 0/0
Mr. LONG Tao
RANIFAE 717 3/3
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
2 - REE 8/8 2/2
Mr. LIU Erh Fei
BIRREE 10/10 0/0
Mr. LIU Tianni
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Notes: 1. Pursuant to Article 103 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, where a Director is unable to attend the board
meetings due to certain cause, he may in writing appoint other
Director to attend the board meetings on his/her behalf.

2. The Company has convened 5 board meetings prior to the

resignation of Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi, Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro
and Mr. ADACHI Katsumi.

At the board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters including
the Company’s annual and interim financial statements, annual budget,
proposals for final and interim dividends, annual report and interim report.
At least 14 days' notice is given to all directors for all regular board
meetings and all directors are given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The agenda and board papers for each meeting
are sent to all directors at least 3 days in advance of every regular board
meeting. All minutes of the board meetings are kept by the company
secretary and are available to all directors for inspection.

There is no material financial, business, family, or other relationship
between any two members of the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEI Bin and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael were appointed as company
secretaries for PRC and Hong Kong affairs respectively on 30 May 2019
and 28 April 1994. Mr. LEI Bin is a full-time employee of the Company,
and works as a chief financial officer of the Company. He is familiar with
the daily routine of the Company.

Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael is a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong and
the senior partner of Tung & Co., the Hong Kong legal adviser of the
Company, and a China Appointed Attesting officer. He holds a B.A.
degree in law and accounting from the University of Manchester, the
United Kingdom. He has over 20 years of experience as a practicing
lawyer in Hong Kong. Mr. TUNG is also the company secretary of a
number of companies listed in Hong Kong. Although Mr. TUNG is not an
employee of the Company, he has been appointed by the Board to advise
on legal and governance-related issues. The primary corporate contact
person of the Company is Mr. LEI Bin, the company secretary for the
PRC affairs.

As confirmed respectively by Mr. LEI Bin and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu
Michael, they had taken the relevant professional trainings for no less
than 15 hours during the year of 2021.
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CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. LUO Yuguang and Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (resigned on 30 July 2021)
and YASUTA Tatsuya (appointed on 30 July 2021) hold the positions of
Chairman of the Board and General Manager respectively, which are two
clearly separate positions.

The Chairman is responsible for leading, and overseeing the operations of
the Board, effectively planning the board meetings and ensuring that the
Board is acting in the best interests of the Company. The Chairman shall
proactively encourage directors to fully participate in the Board's affairs
and make contribution to the functions of the Board. The Board, under
the Chairman’s leadership, has adopted good corporate governance
practices and procedures and has taken appropriate steps to maintain
effective communication with the shareholders.

The General Manager is responsible for managing the business of the
Company, as well as formulating and implementing the Company's
policies and is answerable to the Board in relation to the overall
management of the Company. The General Manager of the Company
works in close association with other executive directors and the
administration team of each core business division, ensuring the funding
requirements of the business of the Company are sufficiently met and
at the same time closely monitors the operation and financial results of
the Company according to business plans and budgets, and advises the
Board on matters in relation to the Company’s development. The General
Manager of the Company is required to keep close communication
with the Chairman and all directors to keep them fully informed of all
substantive matters relating to the Company’s business development,
and is also responsible for building and maintaining a highly efficient
administrative support team to support him to discharge the assigned
duties in this position.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company's operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors' training is an ongoing process. During the year, directors
are provided with monthly updates on the Company's performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties. In addition, all directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company updates directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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According to the records provided by the directors, a summary of the
trainings received by the directors for the year ended 31 December 2021

is as follows:

EE EalxEE
Directors Types of Training
RiTESE
Executive Directors
BFHEE(EER) AC
Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)
MWE— k& (BIEFRREHFE) R_E-_—F+A=THET) C
Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (Vice Chairman and General Manager)

(resigned on 30 July 2021)
THRM L (GIEFRRGEE) R_E_—FtA=THEZD) C
Mr. YASUTA Tatsuya (Vice Chairman and General Manager)

(appointed on 30 July 2021)
AEE—RAER T —FtA=+H&HD) C
Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro (resigned on 30 July 2021)
ARG TER_E-—FtA=1THEZD C
Mr. MASUDA Yoichi (appointed on 30 July 2021)
FEmctE(R_E—FEA=+HEHD C
Mr. ADACHI Katsumi (resigned on 30 July 2021)
SREAFERZZE_—FLA=THEZD C
Mr. YAGI Naoto (appointed on 30 July 2021)
FEELAE A,C
Mr. LI Juxing
TRINSEAE C
Mr. XU Song
FNRESE C
Mr. LI Xiaodong
WIERTESF
Independent Non-executive Directors
EELAE A,C
Mr. LONG Tao
RINIERAE AC
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
BI=FRAEE A,C
Mr. LIU Erh Fei
BIRREHE A
Mr. LIU Tianni
et - Notes:
A. EEENE R ST E R, HRE - A.  Attending briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.
B. E%ﬁ%)\ gk E R RwmiE EERE B.  Making speeches at briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.
C. BIEARAAH —MRER FERE - LW C. Reading seminar materials or magazines and updates relating to

RAKEMEREERERNEROAT S

R SRR R E AR -
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economy, general business, directors’ responsibilities and the
Listing Rules or the latest development of other applicable regulatory
requirements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Three committees have been set up by the Board, namely, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee. The Board is responsible for discharging corporate
governance functions as set forth in the Corporate Governance Code.
Sufficient resources are provided to enable the board committees to
undertake their specific roles.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its nomination committee on 26 March 2012
with the terms of reference. The nomination committee is comprised of
four independent non-executive Directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr.
SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. LIU Tianni and Mr. LIU Erh Fei) and one executive
director (namely Mr. LUO Yuguang). Mr. LUO Yuguang, an executive
Director, serves as the chairman of the nomination committee, and
is responsible for the nomination of the Directors. The committee is
delegated by the Board to formulate the policies for the nomination of
Directors and establish the procedures for the nomination of Directors
and the standards for the selection and recommendation of Directors. It is
also responsible for the review of the structure, size and composition of
the Board and the assessment of the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. Directors shall be elected at the shareholders’
general meeting for a term of three years. Upon expiry of the term, a
Director shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, all Directors are
appointed for a specific term.

The nomination committee held two meetings in 2021. It reviewed
the structure, number and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and made
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors.
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The attendance record of the members of the nomination committee at
the meetings held in 2021 is set out below:

HEE FRRAB

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BITESE
Executive Director
BFENEE

Mr. LUO Yuguang

WIERTESE

Independent Non-executive Directors
b

Mr. LONG Tao

RNIHEE

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

B Rt

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

BIXREE

Mr. LIU Tianni

REZBEHHN LAEARHEREENHK
% ERBEEFEXNEZTICBRNORE
BBTFREB(BREEARKEA - BRIEAMN
REASBESINNTS L BEZNESENES
ANE - EHERZABERENFAER  RBE2Z
Bl a s ey ETERNE - FHERTR
SEEEBE BEERRET  AELR K
BE - BYM - EBEAARFRRKERRE
EREHN LR RENETRERBE - )
REFENRFEBSTHE - FHETRIE
REZBENZERRFEEENESSEL
HBER -

FHEARS

RARERZBEBRFMOA - +HRLT H
ZEg -FMHEESHARTEBELIFH
TEERIAREBEL  RNTEE - 8=
REERFRERE) N —BRTEFET K
STV - HFHZEESTFEAR/ NI LR
fF o
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2/2

2/2
2/2
2/2

2/2

After discussing and understanding the demand for filling the vacancy for
directorship of the Company while balancing the board diversity policy,
the nomination committee identifies appropriate candidates for directors
through various channels (including in the Group, through the nomination
of shareholders and in the market out of the Group). After obtaining
the approval from the candidate on the nomination, the nomination
committee will assess his qualifications, academic degree, professional
ethics, relevant experience, skill, independence and whether he can
coordinate with the future development plan of the Company, devote
time and efforts in performing his duties and responsibilities as well as
the current structure of the board. The nomination committee will make
recommendations to the board on the appointment of a new director
after the completion of the assessment.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its remuneration committee on 20 April
2006. The remuneration committee is comprised of four independent
non-executive Directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang,
Mr. LIU Erh Fei and Mr. LIU Tianni) and one executive Director (namely
Mr. LUO Yuguang). The remuneration committee is chaired by Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang.
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FENE B (AR
Remuneration Bands (RMB)

The main duties of the remuneration committee shall be: (a) to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of all directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (b) to review and approve the management's
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals
and objectives; (c) (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; or (ii) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; (d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group; (e) to review and approve the compensation
payable to executive Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent
with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; (f) to
review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and
(g9) to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors.

The Company has adopted a model to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

0%250,000
250,001 £360,000

Hiat . BRPARESRR
EUIMYER -

REBABTVEEENE

A®

Number of persons

0 to 250,000 7
250,001 to 360,000 1

Note: The members of the senior management disclosed above refer to
those employees other than directors and supervisors.
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Members

The remuneration committee held three meetings in 2021. It made
recommendations to the Board on the remunerations of the independent
non-executive directors and the specific remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management. The attendance
record of the members of the remuneration committee at the meetings
held in 2021 is set out below:

HEE FRRB

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BITES
Executive Director
BTFREE

Mr. LUO Yuguang

WIERTESE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BEELAE

Mr. LONG Tao

RINIREGFRE)

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman)

2l REE

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

BIRR LA

Mr. LIU Tianni

FREAE

ARFER EMRAIKIBZZ E@WATHE
BHEHE BRZEenIBFNITES
AP - P R SRR TR R R
BRI RMER - EREEGHR/INI LR
FEXE - Rt E A RIAEBEL - BI-RE
ERBIRERE -

ERZEeNBEHESRREERRERI
B HE  EBARRAMEAFHERE
i - BERARRNMEERRERE  BEX
RAINEGIE - BENRPREIMNEERS 2
HAE -
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3/3

3/3
3/3
3/3

3/3

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with specific terms
of reference in accordance with the Listing Rules. The audit committee
is comprised of four independent non-executive Directors, who possess
appropriate commercial and financial skills and experience to understand
financial statements. The audit committee is chaired by Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang and other members are Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. LIU Erh Fei and Mr.
LIU Tianni.

The terms of reference of the audit committee include the duties to
recommend the engagement and replacement of external audit firms,
oversee the Company’s internal auditing system and implementation,
verify the Company’s financial information and disclosure, examine
the Company’s internal control system, and take charge and act as a
communication channel between internal and external auditors.



S REARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BREREN T —FRTTINEH B
MAAR - F-TEERARER T4
R RS © THAERE ARKAR S
T REREAL IS

The audit committee held two meetings in 2021. It reviewed the final
results for 2020 and the interim results for 2021. The attendance record
of the members of the audit committee at the meetings in 2021 is set
out below:

R HESE FHERE
Members Attendance/Number of Meetings
WIAFRITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BEEEE 2/2
Mr. LONG Tao

KRNI E(FE) 2/2
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman)

Bl Rt 2/2
Mr. LIU Erh Fei

ZIRGTEE 2/2
Mr. LIU Tianni

EEQREE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

EFgN B —F=AZ T NERBEEE
AT SFRANEXD 3NEFENEACEE
RRENBEREEAEFTERITARE AR
BENEFRESE  ZRESEeRHIE RS
AARFNEEEBRRLER  TREEE
REEE R REREENFIREREARN
B RFEEERR R RERARREE
TERMEERESENBREER ¢ HIE
oat REERE R REFRTER RE R T
(WA) : R AR mE T (eEERTADH
BARE(RRERRE) ROEKE -

The Board adopted the Terms of Reference for Corporate Governance
set out in Code D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code as the terms
of reference for the Board to perform their duties in relation to corporate
governance on 26 March 2012, which include developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management; reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) for the Company’s employees and directors;
and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During 2021, the Board has performed the corporate governance function
as mentioned above.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility in overseeing the operation of
all business units under the Company’'s management. It shall appoint
suitable qualified personnel to serve on the boards of all subsidiaries
operating in key business areas, attending their board meetings to
oversee the operations of these companies. The management in each
business division is accountable for the operations and performance of
the business within its area of responsibility.

The Company’s management has implemented a system of internal
control to provide reasonable assurance that the Group’'s assets are
safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained, applicable laws
and regulations are complied with, reliable financial information are
provided for the Company’'s management for publication purposes and
investment and business risks affecting the Group are identified and
properly managed.

The Board is responsible to ensure a sound and effective risk
management and internal control system to safeguard investments of
Shareholders and assets of the Group and provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against the risks of material misstatement or loss,
and to manage but not eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

The Board shall review the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries at least once every
year. The scope of a review includes financial control, operation control,
compliance control and risks management functions. The Board will also
consider the adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience,
training programs and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function. As at 25 March 2022, the Board has completed the
aforementioned review for 2021 and the Board is of the view that the
Company'’s risk management and internal control systems can properly
and effectively safeguard the investments of the Shareholders and the
assets of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
obligations under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules and has established the inside information disclosure
policy with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission.
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Supervisors

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors and supervisors. After specific enquiry with
all the Directors and supervisors of the Company, all Directors and
supervisors of the Company confirmed that they have completely
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout 2021.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The supervisory committee is comprised of two members, one of whom
is a representative of the Shareholders (namely Ms. MIN Qing) and one
of whom is the representative of the staff and workers (namely Ms.
PU Qing (&ME)). Mr. GUAN Jinming, the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee, resigned on 30 May 2018 and caused a temporary vacancy
for the position. In 2021, the supervisors of the Company exercised
their right of supervision in accordance with the laws to protect the
legal interests of the shareholders, the Company and the employees.
The details of the work of the Supervisory Committee are set out in the
Supervisory Committee's Report in this annual report.

The Supervisory Committee held three meetings in 2021. The attendance
record of the members of the Supervisory Committee at the meetings in
2021 is set out below:

HEE FRRE

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BRARHEHESR
Representatives of the Shareholders

REZ Lt
Ms. MIN Qing

RIAKKRHENES
Representative of the staff and workers

FKEZT(MR_FT_—F+-A+ARED

3/3

2/2

Ms. ZHANG Yongnlng (resigned on 15 December 2021)

LT T —F+-A+HARED

Ms. PU Qing (appointed on 15 December 2021)

mn
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The external auditors currently appointed by the Company are the
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Chongging Branch and Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as its PRC and
international auditors respectively. They were not engaged to perform
non-audit work in order to maintain their independence. The work that the
external auditors are engaged to perform must bring clear benefits and
value-added effects to the Company, and will not cause adverse effect
on the independence or independent standing of their audit function. The
remuneration of the auditor is disclosed in the financial statements.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

With the assistance of the accounting department, the Board is
responsible for preparing the financial statements for each financial year
and ensuring that, in preparing such financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies are adopted and applied and the PRC accounting
standards and systems and International Financial Reporting Standards
are observed, to give a true and fair view of the financial position and
operating results of the Company. The statement of the auditor about
their responsibilities on the Group's financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 64 to 69.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

After the announcement of the Company’s interim and annual financial
results, the Company has proactively arranged for briefing meetings for
people from the investment community at regular intervals, using the
opportunity to promote investor relations and two-way communication.
The Company, through the investor relations manager, responds to the
information requests and inquiries from the investment community.
The Company also publishes information such as the Company's
announcements and circulars on its website (www.gingling.com.cn)
in a timely manner under the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend the annual general
meeting at which the Chairman and directors will answer questions
about the Company’s business raised by shareholders. The Company
distributes annual and interim reports to shareholders in a timely manner
for their inspection.
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RAGWLLEENT attendance record of directors at the general meetings is set out below:
1 HEE BERARRE
Directors Attendance/Number of Meetings
BITES
Executive Directors
BFHEE(EER) 1/2
Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)
WE—SE (FIEFRREFE) N_E_—F+tA=+HED) 1/2
Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (Vice Chairman and General Manager)

(resigned on 30 July 2021)
ZHRM(GIEFRRGFE) RS _—FtA=1THEZD) 0/0
Mr. YASUTA Tatsuya (Vice Chairman and General Manager)

(appointed on 30 July 2021)
AEE—RAER T —FEtA=1THED 0/2
Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro (resigned on 30 July 2021)
EEE—EER_ZE_—F+-A=THEZD 0/0
Mr. MASUDA Yoichi (appointed on 30 July 2021)
flERCAER-E-—FEA=1+HED 0/2
Mr. ADACHI Katsumi (resigned on 30 July 2021)
SREAFERZZZ—FEA=THEZD 0/0
Mr. YAGI Naoto (appointed on 30 July 2021)
ZEELAE 1/2
Mr. LI Juxing
TRINSEA 2/2
Mr. XU Song
TR S 2/2
Mr. LI Xiaodong
BIERTESE
Independent Non-executive Directors
v 2/2
Mr. LONG Tao
RNIHEE 0/2
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
Bl —RxeE 2/2
Mr. LIU Erh Fei
ZIREE 2/2
Mr. LIU Tianni
BEEXH CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

RAFEN - IEEARARNEEXXMHEFT During the year, the Company did not make any amendment to its

sy . .
wE) o constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders of the
Company:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to Article 80 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
two or more shareholders who hold an aggregate of 10% or more
of the shares carrying voting rights at the meeting proposed to be
held may, sign one or several written requisition in the same form
requesting the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders or a class meeting of shareholders, specifying the objects
of the meeting. Upon the receipt of the aforesaid written request(s),
the Board shall convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting of Shareholders as soon as possible. The number of the shares
held as aforesaid shall be calculated based on these shares held by the
Shareholders as at the date of the written requisition.

Where the Board fails to give a notice convening the meeting within
thirty days upon the receipt of the aforesaid written requisition, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, within four months
upon the receipt of the said requisition by the Board. A meeting convene
by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Board duly convene a meeting, shall be borne by the
Company and be deducted from the amounts payable by the Company to
such directors who were in default.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’ general
meetings by shareholders

The content of a proposal shall be a matter that should be determined
by shareholders’ general meeting, which shall have definite topics to be
discussed and specific matters for resolution and shall be in line with the
laws and administrative regulations.

Shareholders that independently or collectively hold more than 3% of
shares in the Company may make a temporary proposal and submit
it to the convener(s) in written form ten days prior to a shareholders’
general meeting. The convener(s) shall give a supplementary notice of
shareholders’ general meeting to announce the content of the temporary
proposal within two days upon receipt of the proposal.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, after sending out a notice
of shareholders’ general meeting, the convener(s) shall not make any
amendments to the proposals included in the notice or add any new
proposals.
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The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director is made available in the website of the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board of the Company in writing through Mr. LEI Bin, the company
secretary, whose contact details are as follows:

Mr. LEI Bin

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongging,
the People's Republic of China

E-mail: hk1122@qingling.com.cn

Tel: (86) 23-65265671

Fax: (86) 23-68830397

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

In 2022, the Company will continue to dedicate efforts into enhancing the
standard of its corporate governance according to the ongoing regulatory
changes, development trend of the Company, and feedback opinions
from shareholders, ensuring a stable and healthy growth for the Company
while adding value to shareholders.

The Board of Directors
LEI Bin

Company Secretary

Chongaing, the PRC
25 March 2022

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

63



64

B Az ZLEm R
Independent Auditor's Report

Deloitte.
=20

BBRSERMAMRLATRRE :
(RPFEANRHFIBE MK T 8)F 50 & ER 17
BR2 7))

BR

ARz EED AT BRI D ERATNERET0
BEEF1BAAMNERAERNERAR(ER
AN REMBEAR(GHEEEE)MEE MK
BE - WEEHMBERREEN T _—F+=
A=1T—ANGEARMBINE - MEEZA b
FENGABRRIEME2ERER  REER
BHRNGRRSRER - URGEEWBHREK
izt BRTIESTTBERME -

BMRR  ZEFAUBBRCBREREER
fAg ((BAGFEAR)BEMNTEUHR
SEAUN(EFAHHRELENDEEMT B R
RTEKER-_FT-_—FT-_A=1t—H&K
BUBARRREEZA LFEOGEEMHERIR
RigaBieneg - W BREBLQAEEZ 5
BREZ BB -

BREX

BMEREBEEBSTMASEMNEERALE
A& AT LR DETET - RPIEZFE
AT AN EECEABRSRBEABRE
MIEBRAENEER P IEE— TR - 1R
BEBEIMAGRANEESEERTR
(T=PR1)) - RFBYRERE - L EEITTH
TREMBEREREE - TPIEE - RIFIPTE
BHETRERER R AR ARFINESE
SR ERE -

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF QINGLING MOTORS CO., LTD.
(a Sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited company incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Qingling
Motors Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 184 which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor's Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

ESTIMATED WRITE-DOWN OF INVENTORIES

We identified the estimated write-down of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the management judgment required in the estimation
of the net realisable value, which is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

As disclosed in notes 4 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had inventories of RMB1,035,550,000 (net of write-down for
inventories of RMB81,887,000) as at 31 December 2021. In determining
the net realisable value, the management of the Group considers the
historical selling prices of similar products, the estimated costs of
completion, the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, the current
market conditions, forecast usage and sales volume of similar products.

Our procedures in relation to the write-down of inventories included:

° Obtaining an understanding of the Group's forecast usage, selling
prices, costs of completion, costs necessary to make the sale, and
sales volume of inventories which are used by the management of
the Group in the estimation of the net realisable value;

° Considering the selling prices and sales volume of inventories
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and subsequent to the
year end, on a sample basis, and comparing this information with
the Group's expected selling prices and sales volume of inventories
at year-end date;

° Challenging the assumptions of determining the estimated selling
prices and sales volume of forecast sales, on a sample basis, with
reference to the current market conditions and historical selling
prices and sales volume of similar products; and

° Comparing the cost of inventories at year-end date, on a sample

basis, with the estimated net realisable value and checking if
adequate write-down of inventories has been made.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor's Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chen Ping Him.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE_FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2% —ERTEF
2021 2020
biaE ARSFT AREFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
|1} g~ Revenue I5) 4,828,237 5,088,762
HEKR Cost of sales (4,273,893) (4,389,361)
EF Gross profit 554,344 699,401
E A A K Other income and expenses 7 453,790 279,182
A EEREEER TRRERE Impairment losses under expected
(F0BREE ) credit loss model, net of reversal 8 614 (218)
Eﬁﬂﬂ SRIBXRFEE Other gains and losses, net 9 85,653 2,462
788 R SHE R AR Distribution and selling expenses (244,464) (274,624)
ERER Administrative expenses (232,801) (207,003)
HRER Research expenses (269,928) (228,950)
Eﬁﬁfﬁﬁ Finance costs (1,374) (1,589)
AFRAR R Reversal of provision for litigation 40 = 53,633
DIREE D EEE Share of results of associates (5,616) 433
DIEEEDEEE Share of results of joint ventures 4,306 2,427
BRIRBIRFI Profit before tax 10 344,524 325,154
FrEfi it Income tax expense 1M (13,638) (18,692)
FRRFR Profit and total comprehensive
Faeuka income for the year 330,886 306,462
THALREERTIR Profit and total comprehensive
Feaka - income attributable to:
RAEIE=EEB A Owners of the Company 322,080 300,989
EEaliig Non-controlling interests 8,806 5,473
330,886 306,462
BRERZRN Basic earnings per share RMBO0.13 RMBO0.12
17 AR®0413T AR%0.127T

3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-E-—Ff - A=1+—HIFFZF
At 31 December 2021

—E_—5F —ETF
2021 2020
Hiat AR¥TFIT AR¥TFr
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’'000
EREEE Non-current assets
Y - WE kB Property, plant and equipment 18 1,047,558 953,870
FHEEE Right-of-use assets 19 44,738 81,791
"EME Investment properties 20 19,235 39,382
ﬂﬁ?ﬁ? Intangible assets 21 189,659 228,581
REFE D Interests in associates 22 51,131 33,118
REELEER Interests in joint ventures 23 489,471 487,333
IRAEFI IR & B Deferred tax assets 24 13,939 18,191
TEHATFR Time deposits 27 3,132,775 2,265,640
4,988,506 4,107,906
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 25 1,035,550 841,599
FEWBRR - IEUNEIE & Trade, bills and other receivables and
At FEMGRIE R TR 3K prepayments 26 2,597,025 2,718,860
TH&@%RIE Tax recoverable 11,770 15,591
EHFER Time deposits 27 599,083 2,240,652
RITHER LR S Bank balances and cash 28 1,673,977 1,041,733
5,917,405 6,858,435
meEnafE Current liabilities
JENBRE - BN ZEREMMENFKIE  Trade, bills and other payables 29 2,119,936 2,426,653
HIBEE Tax liabilities 3,050 2,674
aRaE Contract liabilities 30 594,746 372,138
REBAE Refund liabilities 31 89,066 107,091
HEaE Lease liabilities 32 22,816 30,496
2,829,614 2,939,052
mENEERE Net current assets 3,087,791 3,919,383
HEERTEAR Total assets less current liabilities 8,076,297 8,027,289
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RoCE-——Ff+-HA=+—HIFFE
At 31 December 2021

—E_—5 —ERCEEF
2021 2020
bzt ARSFIT AREFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
B R ks Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 33 2,482,268 2,482,268
PR AR (8 M fE 1 Share premium and reserves 5,257,429 5,183,576
NARE= A AE G Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 7,739,697 7,665,844
FEIERR A Non-controlling interests 327,525 321,581
HaME Total equity 8,067,222 7,987,425
ERBAR Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 32 1,923 31,882
FEIEWA — BT B Deferred income — governments
grants 34 7,152 7,982
9,075 39,864
8,076,297 8,027,289

FIOBEZEFI84B ZERAMBRENZE =
7%

FoA-ThHAESE=SIERRES
B TIIESHEREE

FEE
£ B=x
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are signed on its behalf by:

Li Juxing
DIRECTOR

Li Xiaodong
DIRECTOR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 184 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2022 and
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

FORHEARK
Attributable to owners of the Company
tERR  HEER
B% BEER WeoWE  OWe  LWE  REEH #it FARNE it
Statutory Discretionary Non-
Share Share  Capital  surplus  surplus  Retained controlling

capital  premium  reserve reserve fund reserve fund profits Total  interests Total
NGB AREFT ARETL AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETR
VB0 RMBOO  AMBOA)  RMBUOO  AMBOAD  RMBUOO  AMBUAD  AMBUO - AMBUMD
o W W
Note) ~ fhote /4] frote 75

R-E-5E-A-H At 1 January 2020 2080268 1764905 571200 117689 2367 1764402 7762018 318832 8,080,850
EmERRGALLE Profitand total comprehensive income for the year s s s s - 0%9 0% 543 068
EEAR Appropiation for the year 5 5 - B ] s s s
ERARTH_E-NERERE A1) 2019 inal dividends recognised and paid (a0t 16/ - - - - - 3706 (397,163 S A ]
MAFERRERNRE Dividends paid to non-controling interests S S = = = . -y R
R-E-TE+-A=1-H At 31 December 2020 2482268 1764905 571200 1204923 2347 1640201 7665844 321581 7987425
EmEiRsa s Profitand total comprehensive income for the year s s = = - 3080 M08 88l 330886
Egan Appropriation for the year - - - 3en - ATy = = e
BEARRN-Z_RERERE M) 2020 finel dvidends recognised and pad fote 16/ - - - - - s (s - )
MAHERRE RS Dividends paid to non-controling nterests s - - - - - 17|
M E-E+-A=1-A At 31 December 2021 2080268 1764905 571200 1236497 2367 1682480 7739697 307526 8067202
KiaF - Note:

BRARNBEeEEER -ZARYS72,206,0007T(=
T-TH : AR¥572,206,0007T)5E - IEE
BETERMAERBEARAQREXLAIAERA
HEEARARTELRER]  DAEBHKRE
BRARRERASEARAABAXRRARNEE
FEAEAE—NMNANEEEAN—ID  LBEEAA
RSB AT 3$471,500,000,000 M E A R
1,500,000,0007C 2 B H Z 5 ©

The capital reserve mainly includes an amount of RMB572,206,000 (2020:
RMB572,206,000) which represents the excess of the value of the net assets
immediately before the establishment of the Company injected into the
Company by E#%/55E (£E)BR A A("Qingling Group” - ultimate holding
company of the Group) and E#: /78 ABR A Flas part of the reorganisation in
1994 which was approved by the State Administration of State-owned Assets,
over the nominal value of 1,500,000,000 shares issued upon establishment of
the Company of RMB1,500,000,000.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

B k2
2021 2020
ARBFT AREFT
RMB000 AMB'000
BEEH Operating activities
BRBE AT AR Profit before tax 344,524 325,154
EfERE Adjustments for:
BTBRCA Finance costs 1,374 1,589
FIEMA Interest income (178,357) (207,692
PEHELEREE Share of results of associates 5,616 (433)
/VE RERERE Share of results of joint ventures (4,306) (2,427)
BRI Government grants recognised (180,830) (717)
Hit UG E R EERE (R [Reversal of) impairment losses on other receivables (74) %
V W R EEE(RR) [Reversal of) impairment losses on trade receivables (540) 122
HFEMHFE Write-down of inventories, net 16,677 (9,389)
nE - BELRRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 45,858 36,183
TRESENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 20,660 32,292
B EEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 38,922 38,646
REMENE Depreciation of investment properties 2,159 2,466
HERBME  WEFE Gain on disposal of an investment property, net (79,566) =
HEMERREERWR)FE Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment, net 6,454 (699)
L EEEE Net foreign exchange loss 690 1,352
BEACHRACERER Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital 39,261 216,543
FEEM Increase in inventories (210,628) (198,914)
FENER - FEMZE RE MR FUE R Decrease (increase) in trade, bills and other receivables
TR FER A () and prepayments 303,320 (419,177)
RBRHIRITERR D Decrease in restricted bank balances s 137,633
ERRR - ENREREMEATORD)EMN (Decrease) increase in trade, bills and other payables (319,119) 188,175
AHBEEMRD) Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities 222,608 (65,885)
U&’Ef (R)Em (Decrease) increase in refund liabilities (18,025) 23,480
FRBERD Decrease in provision for litigation - (48,633)
BEEBREMR)RS Cash generated from (used in) operations 17,417 (166,778)
BN FERTE Income taxes paid (5,189) (27,031)
BELEBREFRARLPE Net cash from (used in) operating activities 12,228 (193,809)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

—E--% —ECFE
2021 2020
ARBFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB 000
REEH Investing activities
BAEHBER Placement of time deposits (1,921,000) (5,187,000)
REEHER Withdrawal of time deposits 2,656,000 4,963,857
BENE  BEREEUREVEE Purchases of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (138,597) (179,004)
WEmE-FHEERrENRE Dividends received from a joint venture 2,168 5,347
R—EgErE RE Investment in an associate (24,500) (24,500)
FBWA Interest received 217,791 178,980
HENE  BERRXERGHE Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,999 1,527
HE—RIEEMEMBTE Proceeds on disposal of an investment property 97,554 =
BAEREN E”ﬂ(ﬂ(!ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ Government grants received related to assets =
REEBRBFRA RSP Net cash from (used in) investing activities 894,415 (240,788)
MEEH Financing activities
BERRE Dividends paid (248,227) (397,163)
EN—ERBLRRFEERRERE Dividends paid to a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary (2,862) (2,724)
MEREEN Repayments of lease liabilities (21,246) (30,165)
IRMSER Payments of interest expense (1,374) (1,589)
MEEEMARLIH Net cash used in financing activities (273,709) (431,641
ReRFEERMEMED)PHE Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 632,934 (866,238)
R—B—AZRLREEEEN Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1,041,733 1,909,323
EREBmTE Effects of foreign exchange rate changes (690) (1,352)
R+=R=+—-AZRERALERN Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December,
DRTHEBRAL represented by bank balances and cash 1,673,977 1,041,733
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Qingling Motors Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a sino-foreign joint venture
joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company is 1 Xiexing Cun,
Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongqing, the PRC. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the
production and sale of Isuzu light-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, medium and
heavy-duty trucks and automobile parts, accessories and others.

The parent and ultimate holding company of the Company is Qingling
Group (a state-owned enterprise established in Chongging, the PRC).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
which is also the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and Phase 2
HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee of the International Accounting Standards
Board issued in June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity should
include as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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For z‘he year ended 31 December 2021

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

573

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments®

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?*

Covid-19- Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021"

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020?
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and
its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group's equity therein, which present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interests in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate
or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.

B8 /AE D AR A R] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Revenue from sales of trucks, chassis, automobile parts, accessories
and others are recognised when the control of goods is transferred,
being when the goods are delivered to the customer’s specific location.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered
to the customer’s specific location as this represents the point in time
at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due. The customers have
neither rights of return nor rights to defer or avoid payment for the goods
once they are accepted by the customers.
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3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount, which better predicts the amount of consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that such
an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the estimated
transaction price (including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully
the circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

Warranties

If a customer has the option to purchase a warranty separately, the Group
accounts for the warranty as a separate performance obligation and
allocates a portion of the transaction price to that performance obligation.

If a customer does not have the option to purchase a warranty
separately, the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets unless
the warranty provides the customer with a service in addition to the
assurance that the product complies with agreed-upon specifications (i.e.
service-type warranties).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B —FFZHA=1—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects to refund
some or all of the consideration received from customers.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a
performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself
(i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to
be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service before
that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the
provision of the specified good or service by another party. In this case,
the Group does not control the specified good or service provided by
another party before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of
any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for
arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by the other
party.
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3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will
not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of warehouse that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:
° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentive received,;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition
of investment property as a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position. Right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment property are presented within “investment
properties”.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liabilities at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related lease
liabilities is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review, in which cases the related lease
liabilities is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope

and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.
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3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use assets.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or
operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to
the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part of the
original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease modifications,
including lease incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are are presented under “other income and expenses”.
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3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans including
state-managed retirement benefit schemes in the PRC are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised
as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.
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HE—FE-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, and interests in associates
and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3R 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in
which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the
lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes requirements
to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity
by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.



3. RAEMEERNRREERE
EE T ER (1)

32 EEEBEG
HE - B RR G

ME - BERRBERFIERANEEXHERR
KRB AEEME 2BV EE(T X EE
HETMEEINIE - BE RRERKAER
P& R2FHTERRFREBEN G S PHAR
RIBR(NA)

REAE - HESITHRAGOERYFEARAR
BAERERRRRERRSIRR - KABEER
SRR EEEBIGRAAEREREHRN TR
BAEFT TR AV R R VIR A - RELA
BREEMS @ BREREBEASENSHRERE
BB AN © S EWMENT T RAIHAR
BREMRZBIERME  BERREBENEER
B ZEBEMNTEEEREMYEEER
R - TTREERI AR EE B FBETIE -

EAKERRMENREEER (BEHEEL
WRBFRD)NKE - 2FREREELH
NABFRD 2 FHRVIA R B AR S 2 TER
Pl e

fHpE R SEN ALA IR - ME T HEENERS
MBRRRAZINRMEREEE] - ERESE
FEABRE LA FFRERTR D MRS E
s AR DR - BEMERIEAYE
P55 K ikt o

BEZME BERLEERELERUINE
&= EEEEFRERRE G A EREH
IABAREMERAT B AMSHAC A » AR MR A
RERABANEREERERERT A REGE
REXSZNEREREANTRGTEEERT
DAITE - fhEt A RS - BE  BHLES
N ETNEREHE RIS - ARIEMAE
SRR ERELESIRR

,.\m 7f ﬁ&#ﬁﬁ Bﬁ ;I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction for production
as described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties
are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other
than properties under construction and specialised production facilities
and moulds, over their estimated useful lives after taking into account
of their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method.
Specialised production facilities and moulds which can be identified in
relation to specific production processes are depreciated by reference
to the expected production volume of these facilities and moulds after
taking into account of their estimated residual values. The estimated
useful lives, residual values, the expected production volume and the
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals.

Investment properties are initially measured at costs, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset;
and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
investment properties, and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
investment properties carried at cost, intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, investment properties carried at cost, and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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